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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

ROBERT J. ADAVSON
‘ Chairman of the Board of Dzrectors and Chief Executive Officer

In 2005, we persevered through another challenging year for the healthcare staffing industry and for our
company. However, I am pleased to report that there were also signs of modest improvement as evidenced
by a lower year-over-year revenue decline in each quarter of 2005, with revenues for the fourth quarter of
2005 being less than 1% below the prior year. We continue to perform better than other large scale per
diem oriented businesses, and there is a reason for that, We have a business model that sustains us during
periods of low demand and rewards us when demand accelerates,

AN TNDUSTRY IN FLUX

Hospitals today face a major challenge. The demand for experienced nurses continues to grow. The federal
government projects that 450,000 new nurses may be required by 2008 to meet the needs of healthcare
institutions. Meanwhile, the supply of nurses continues to dwindle. By 2015, according to the Department

of Health and Human Services, 114,000 full-time RN jobs will go unfilled.

There are other issues to be addressed. We should be very concerned that an alarming number of nurses
are leaving due to professional burnout and low morale. Higher turnover rates lead not only to shortages,
but also to higher recruiting and administrative costs for hospitals.

To compound the problem, fewer nurses are entering the field. In the past five years, enrollment in
baccalaureate nursing programs decreased by almost 25%. In addition, by 2010, 40% of the nursing
workforce will be 50 or older.

When you consider all these factors, you realize the inevitability of the return of our industry to being a
dominant force in the healthcare sector.

CONTINUING CH E
Demand for our core per diem nurse staffing services did improve in 2005, but challenges still exist as
healthcare facilities continue to insist that their employees work longer and harder. It remains difficult for
staffing managers to push for an increase in per diem nurses when admissions continue to fall short of
expectations. We do not believe that patients delaying healthcare services and measures by hospitals to
stretch their finite nursing resources are viable long-term solutions for the imbalance between supply and
demand. Nor do we believe that hospitals can allow this imbalance to continue.

An inadequate number of nurses over a prolonged period threatens the quality of patient care; without
enough skilled technicians, hospitals will find it difficult to maintain other revenue-generating services.
Recruitment of qualified healthcare professionals remains of utmost importance. We believe that, as the
economy continues to improve and admissions return to historic levels, both nurses and hospital
administrators will, once again, realize what an attractive and rational solution our outsourced
supplemental healthcare staffing services make.

In our view, the improving economy and stable Medicare reimbursements should continue a return to the
normally consistent rates of growth for healthcare services. For the longer term, we believe that we hold a
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AS THE DEMAND FOR HEALTHCARE RISES WITH THE STEADILY AGING POPULATION, AS THE SUPPLY OF NURSES
BECOMES INCREASINGLY UNABLE TO KEEP PACE WITH THAT DEMAND, AND AS THE PER DIEM STAFFING FIELD

CONSOLIDATES, WE LOOK FORWARD TO LONG-TERM GROWTH IN A VERY PROMISING FUTURE.

very strong position. As the demand for healthcare rises with the steadily aging population, as the supply
of nurses becomes increasingly unable to keep pace with that demand, and as the per diem staffing field
consolidates, we look forward to long-term growth in a very promising future.

IMPROVING CONBITIONS

We have developed strengths in the areas of travel nursing and allied specialties. The market conditions
for travel nursing and allied specialties have improved over the prior year, and demand for these services
steadily improved throughout 2005. Travel and allied revenues represented 26% of our total volume in
2005, and we expect continued favorable conditions for growth in 2006. Healthcare facilities appear to be
more receptive to placing additional travel nurses, rather than per diem nurses. As a result, we are focusing
on a strategy of offering local nurses for an extended contract period. Also, for allied specialties, demand
remains strong. These positions are often a source of revenue for the healthcare facilities and, therefore,
are less likely to meet with resistance from staffing managers to fill needed positions.

QUALITY

We have stated since our inception that we are a company that stands for quality; in our people, our
processes and throughout our organization. We have been strong supporters of the new healthcare staffing
firm certification program that the Joint Commission for the Accreditation of Healthcare Organizations
(JCAHO) created and the quality standards it requires. Obtaining JCAHO’s “Gold Seal of Approval”
provides an objective confirmation of the high quality healthcare professionals and excellent service that
we have been providing to our clients for many years. We were the first large scale per diem staffing
company to achieve this certification. We believe that to further strengthen Medical Staffing’s relationship
as a partner to our clients, it was essential to participate in the voluntary certification program
administered by this respected institution that accredits healthcare facilities. We believe the certification
will provide us with a competitive advantage over healthcare staffing firms who are either unwilling or
unable to obtain this certification.

FINANCIAL STRENGTH

Improving profitability will be our primary focus in 2006. We recently announced that we would close a
number of our per diem branches. Along with the closures, we reduced headcount and other expenses in
operations support as well as in our corporate office. The branches we closed were in markets where
demand for per diem nursing had not stabilized, and we could no longer justify the investment needed to
maintain those locations. The focus of our growth initiative investments in 2006 will predominantly be in
our travel nurse and allied operations, where we believe near term opportunities are greatest. We will also
continue to “tighten our belts” whenever possible.

MOTIVATED MANAGEMENT

We are strengthened by the challenges we face. We recognize that the healthcare industry is cyclical by
nature. Having observed the ebb and flow of the home care industry and the psychiatric sector, we remain
confident that our time will come again. In the meantime, all of us are working hard to streamline the
Company and become even more efficient so that we will fully benefit as the industry recovers. We believe
that time is now approaching. With market conditions improving, our ability to now tangibly differentiate
our quality standards and the impact of our recent cost reduction measures, we look forward to continued
improvement in 2006. We thank you for your continued support and belief in the future of Medical
Staffing Network.

Sincerely,

fad—

Robert J. Adamson
Chairman of the Board of Directors
and Chief Executive Officer
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PART I
Item 1. Business
General Development of Business

We are a leading temporary healthcare staffing company and the largest provider of per diem nurse staffing
services (staffing assignments of less than thirteen weeks in duration) in the United States as measured by revenues.
Our per diem staffing assignments place our professionals, predominately nurses, at hospitals and other healthcare
facilities to solve our clients’ temporary staffing needs. We believe we are also a leading provider of specialized
radiology and diagnostic imaging specialists and clinical laboratory technicians, or “allied health” professionals, as
measured by revenues. We serve our clients through what we believe to be the largest temporary healthcare staffing
network in the United States, which was comprised as of December 25, 2005 of 120 per diem branches that provide
nurse staffing on a per diem basis in 40 states. Our extensive client base includes approximately 7,000 healthcare
facilities including leading for-profit and not-for-profit hospitals, leading teaching hospitals and regional healthcare
providers. We do not receive a material portion of our revenues from Medicare or Medicaid reimbursements or
similar state reimbursement programs.

Our business has grown significantly since our founding in 1998. We call branches that we have opened
since our inception “de novo” branches, as opposed to branches acquired from third parties. The majority of our
branches were de novo branches as of December 25, 2005.

For the year ended December 25, 2005, we had revenues of $402.5 million and income from operations of
$1.3 million. During this period, we earned 73% of our revenues from our per diem nurse staffing assignments, 19%
from our allied health assignments, 7% from our travel nurse staffing assignments and 1% from our per diem
general staffing assignments.

We believe the flexibility of our service offerings provides substantial value to our clients and
professionals. We provide our clients with significant assistance in managing their profitability by giving them a
high degree of control in managing their labor costs without sacrificing clinical expertise. In addition, working on a
per diem basis allows our healthcare professionals substantial flexibility in balancing their careers with their lifestyle
objectives.

We were formed as a Delaware corporation in 1998. Our predecessor corporation, Southeast Staffing
Partners, Inc., a Florida corporation, was founded in June 1997,

Industry Overview

The temporary nurse staffing market has two major components: per diem nursing and travel nursing. Per
diem nurse staffing is the largest sector of the temporary healthcare staffing industry, providing healthcare
professionals for assignments of a single shift to thirteen weeks, and is used to meet local labor shortages and
openings due to holidays, vacations, illness and staff turnover, as well as daily and seasonal fluctuations in hospital
volume. The per diem market operates with many local operators and is highly fragmented. The per diem staffing
model requires a local presence in every market served because these short-term staffing needs are typically filled on
a local basis, and are dependant on the relationship that exists between local operators, local professionals and the
healthcare facility.

In the travel nurse market, healthcare facilities hire travel nurses on a contracted, fixed-term basis to meet
seasonal fluctuations in hospital admissions levels for time periods ranging from several weeks to one year, but are
typically thirteen weeks long. Travel nurse companies coordinate travel and housing arrangements for their
professionals who typically relocate to the area in which they are placed. The travel staffing model utilizes a
centralized approach to serving its clients.



Allied health staffing consists of highly specialized radiology and diagnostic imaging specialties, clinical
laboratory specialties, rehabilitation specialties, pharmacists and respiratory therapists. These professionals are
staffed on both a per diem and travel basis.

Service revenues and gross profit margins have been under pressure as demand for temporary nurses has
been going through a period of contraction. However, the rate of contraction has slowed during the past year. Due to
the current difficult economic times, the unemployment rate, while slightly improved over the past year, remains
relatively high. We believe this has resulted in nurses in many households becoming a primary wage earner, which
is causing such nurses to seek more traditional full-time employment. Additionally, hospitals are experiencing lower
than projected admissions levels and are placing greater reliance on existing full-time staff, resulting in increased
overtime and nurse-patient loads.

We cannot predict when conditions will reverse, but we are confident in the long-term growth of the
industry. In a January 13, 2000 report, the U.S. Census Bureau, Population Projections Bureau, projected that the
number of Americans over 65 years of age is expected to grow from 34.5 million in 2000 to 53.7 million in 2020. In
a July 2002 report, the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services stated that the national supply of full-time
equivalent registered nurses was approximately 1.9 million while demand was approximately 2.0 million. This gap
between supply and demand for nurses is expected to grow from 0.1 million in 2000 to 0.8 million by 2020.
Additionally, there is a growing trend to restrict mandatory healthcare worker overtime requirements by employers
and to establish nurse-patient ratios. Several states have enacted legislation prohibiting mandatory overtime and
other states have similar legislation pending. In conjunction with the aforementioned factors, we believe that the
prospects for the healthcare staffing industry should improve as hospitals experience higher admissions levels and
increasing shortages of healthcare workers.

Description of the Business

We provide hospitals and other healthcare facilities with a wide range of staffing services, including per
diem nurses, allied health professionals and travel nurses. While we have a national presence, we operate on a local
basis through an integrated network, which consisted of 120 per diem branches in 40 states as of December 25,
2005, so that we may develop significant relationships with our clients and healthcare professionals and provide the
highest level of service. We have provided services to over 7,000 healthcare facilities that have paid us directly for
the services we provide.

Temporary Staffing Services Provided

The per diem nurse staffing portion of our business provides nurses for assignments with durations ranging
from a single shift to a 13-week assignment and represented approximately 73% of our 2005 fiscal year revenues.
We offer our clients all major classifications of nurses, including registered nurses and licensed practical nurses,
across all specialties such as pediatric, geriatric, intensive care unit and cardiovascular. We provide per diem
personnel to a variety of healthcare facilities including acute care hospitals, nursing homes, clinics and surgical and
ambulatory care centers. We serve both for-profit and not-for-profit organizations that range in scope from one
facility to national chains with over 100 facilities. The allied health staffing portion of our business, which
represented approximately 19% of our 2005 fiscal year revenues, specializes in providing allied health professionals
to hospitals, nursing homes, clinics and surgical and ambulatory care centers, both on a per diem and a travel basis.
We believe our allied healthcare business to be among the largest in the country as measured by revenues. Allied
health staffing specialties that we staff include diagnostic imaging and radiology technicians, clinical laboratory
technicians, rehabilitation specialists, pharmacists and respiratory therapists. The travel nurse staffing portion of our
business, which represented approximately 7% of our 2005 fiscal year revenues, provides nurses and surgical
technicians to hospitals across the country for assignments typically lasting thirteen weeks. The per diem general
staffing portion of our business, which represented approximately 1% of our 2005 fiscal year revenues, places
individuals in a variety of areas including clerical, janitorial and food services.

During the second quarter of 2003, we discontinued our physician staffing operation, and as such, the
results of operations from these services are shown separately, as a total amount, in our consolidated statements of
operations for all years presented.




National Branch Network

We currently operate an integrated network, which consists of 120 per diem branches located in 40 states as
of December 25, 2005. Subsequent to year end, we announced that we were in the process of closing certain per
diem nurse branches. Our branches are organized into several geographic regions, each of which is coordinated by a
regional director. These branches serve as our direct contact with our healthcare professionals and clients and are
active in recruiting, scheduling, and sales and marketing. Each branch is responsible for covering a specific local
geographic region. Our typical branch is staffed with four or five professionals who are responsible for the day-to-
day operations of the business. These professionals include a branch manager, two to three staffing coordinators, and
a payroll administrator.

The cost structure of our typical branch is primarily fixed, consisting of limited personnel, office space rent,
information systems infrastructure and supplies. We have been able to develop a highly efficient branch
management model that is easily scaleable to meet increasing demand.

Recruitment and Retention

Our ability to recruit and retain a pool of talented, motivated and highly credentialed healthcare
professionals is critical to our success. Our active pool of professionals was greater than 28,000 in 2005. We
typically attract new recruits via word of mouth. The majority of our senior operations management have nursing or
other clinical backgrounds. We believe this depth of clinical experience helps us understand the needs of clinical
personnel and enhances our reputation in the industry as an advocate for nurses and other healthcare professionals,
improving our ability to recruit such personnel. In addition, we offer competitive benefits packages that differentiate
us from the smaller, local per diem staffing companies with which we compete, and which are typically unable to
offer the package of services and benefits that we offer. We believe our competitive advantages in recruiting skilled
personnel include the ability to offer the following opportunities to our personnel:

. Flexible Staffing Assignments. We provide our professionals with the flexibility to tailor their staffing
schedules to accommodate lifestyle choices. There are many reasons why qualified nurses choose to work
on a per diem basis, but most are motivated by the ability to balance their profession with their other
responsibilities and interests. Our professionals are able to choose not only when they work but also where
they work. Our scheduling systems are designed to place our professionals in facilities and shifts where
they have had a productive and positive experience with our clients.

. Competitive Benefits Package. We believe that we were the first per diem healthcare staffing company to
offer a comprehensive benefits program for qualified per diem staff. Our program includes a matching
401(k) plan and access to group discounted benefits such as health, dental, life, disability and general
liability insurances for healthcare professionals who work for us for a specified minimum number of hours
per month for more than one month.

. Choice of Pay Frequency - Including Daily. Our ability to offer pay as frequently as daily provides our
professionals with another key element of flexibility. Rather than waiting for the end of a traditional weekly
or biweekly pay period, our professionals can be paid immediately after completing their shifts. This allows
our branch staff to maintain an active dialogue with our professionals regarding future assignments. This
consistent interaction fosters unique relationships that distinguish us from our competition.

. Leading Continuing Educational Programs. We also offer continuing education courses as a means to
improve our pool of nurses as well as to maintain proper compliance. We have a unique relationship with
Florida Atlantic University’s College of Nursing. The College of Nursing faculty develops continuing
education courses that we offer online through our website. Our nurses can obtain continuing education
units (CEUs) that many states require to educate our nurses regarding changing technology and clinical
practices. Qur courses are fully accredited by the American Nurses Credentialing Center of Excellence and
the Florida Board of Nursing.




We have several proven recruitment channels that consistently augment our pool of healthcare
professionals at low marginal cost. In 2005, we spent approximately 1% of our revenues on recruitment activities.
Our recruiting activities include print advertisements in local newspapers and in trade journals, mailings, Internet
listings and solicitations at trade conventions.

Quality Management

We have developed a substantial clinical quality improvement program to uphold our high standards in
recruiting healthcare professionals. Our two-step internal process ensures that all of our temporary professionals
have the proper credentials, skills and experience for their assignments. We have found that our adherence to high
quality management standards is an integral component of satisfying both clients and professionals with our
placements. Our two-step process for quality management includes the following:

Pre-employment Qualifications. All of our healthcare professionals undergo a rigorous screening process
that includes requirements such as a minimum of one year of related work experience and the successful completion
of written tests specific to their area of specialty. Each applicant is then interviewed in person by a local branch
manager. This sets us apart from our competitors who often do not conduct face-to-face interviews. We also check
prior work references, confirm the validity of the applicant’s professional license(s) and screen the applicant for any
criminal activity and drug abuse. All of these standards comply with or exceed those required by Occupational
Safety & Health Administration (OSHA) and Joint Commission on Accreditation of Healthcare Organizations
(JCAHO). In fact, we completed JCAHO's voluntary comprehensive certification review process in 2005 to earn its
Gold Seal of Approval. We are the first national provider of per diem nursing services to achieve JCAHO Health
Care Staffing Services Certification, which provides us with another competitive advantage in the per diem nursing
staffing marketplace. JCAHO's Gold Seal of Approval is recognized nationwide as a symbol of quality that reflects a
commitment to meeting certain performance standards.

Placement and Ongoing Monitoring. Once we have hired a healthcare professional, we enter all of the
professional’s data into our database, which tracks any “renewal dates” with respect to licenses and continuing
education requirements. Our database also matches our clients’ needs with our available pool of professionals. We
strive to place our professionals in facilities where they have previously worked in order to enhance the continuity of
our services to our clients. If this is not possible, we provide our professionals with pre-staffing orientation to the
facility. By taking these steps, we ensure that the healthcare professional is comfortable with the facility’s physical
layout, permanent staff and clinical protocols. We also continually monitor the performance of our professionals
through evaluations and client feedback, among other things. In addition, our clients may access our database
remotely (via the Internet), which provides them the ability to view the credentials of the professionals being staffed
at their facilities.

Sales and Marketing

We have developed a three-pronged approach to our sales and marketing activities in order to address the
different levels of decision makers at our clients’ facilities:

Our first level of business development and relationship management is with the purchasing manager,
administrator(s) or chief nursing officer at a group of facilities we service. Commonly-owned hospitals, nursing
home chains and healthcare group alliances often purchase temporary staffing services for multiple facilities under a
single contract, and a single person typically manages the selection process. A senior member of our staff, the
regional director and, in certain circumstances, the Executive Vice President of Operations, negotiate contractual
terms and pricing with such groups of facilities.

Our second level of business development and relationship management is with the director of nursing or a
nurse/allied department manager, who reviews our services from a clinical competency and quality hiring standards
perspective. Our regional director and local branch manager establish, build and maintain relationships at this level.




Our third level of relationship management is with the facility staffing coordinators and the after-hours and
weekend supervisors who are the actual users of the services. Our branch managers and local staffing coordinators
regularly contact these buyers to coordinate the daily staffing and scheduling of personnel.

Information Systems

Our information system for our per diem staffing operation, for which we hold an exclusive twenty-five
year license and which we refer to as MSN HealthWorks, is customized to our recruiting, regulatory credentialing,
scheduling and billing needs. Not only is the database used as a management tool, but it is also used by our staffing
coordinators in each branch to respond quickly to client questions and requests. MSN HealthWorks” applications
and its supporting infrastructure house and organize all of our client and employee information. Electronic files are
maintained on our client facilities, detailing historical and prospective requests for staffing. These files also contain
facility-specific procedures and protocols so that we can ensure that our healthcare professionals integrate quickly.
Each employee’s electronic file contains the employee’s credentials, test scores, employment record and availability.
This data enables our branch-office staff to automatically match open requests with qualified candidates.

MSN HealthWorks also monitors billing records using time cards to generate invoices for our clients and
paycheck information for our employees. MSN HealthWorks operates as a single entry system, meaning that the
initial shift confirmation entry enables our payroll to be generated at the branch level on a daily basis and the
invoicing to be generated at our corporate office. This system enables us not only to monitor costs and compliance,
but also to ensure that we respond to client requests as quickly as possible. We can typically fill a client staffing
request in less than 15 minutes.

We have adapted MSN HealthWorks to provide our clients with functionality for budgeting and access to
nurse and employee credentials via the Internet

Competition

The temporary healthcare staffing industry is highly competitive. We compete with both national firms and
local and regional firms. We compete with these firms to attract nurses and other healthcare professionals as
temporary healthcare professionals and to attract hospital and healthcare facility clients. We compete for temporary
healthcare professionals on the basis of the quantity, diversity and quality of assignments available, compensation
packages, and the benefits that we provide to temporary healthcare professionals while they are on assignment. We
compete for hospital and healthcare facility clients on the basis of the quality of our temporary healthcare
professionals, the timely availability of our professionals with the requisite skills, quality and scope, price and
geographic reach of our services.

The per diem market includes many local operators and is highly fragmented. The per diem staffing
business requires a local presence in every market served since an important relationship exists between the local
branch and the healthcare facility. We believe, however, that larger, nationally established firms enjoy distinct
competitive advantages over smaller, local and regional competitors in the healthcare staffing industry. Larger and
more established firms have a critical mass of available nursing candidates, substantial word-of-mouth referral
networks and established brand names, enabling them to attract a consistent flow of new applicants. Larger firms
can also more easily provide payroll services, which are cash flow intensive, to healthcare providers. As a result,
sizable and established firms such as ours have had a significant advantage over small participants.

Some of our large competitors in the temporary healthcare staffing industry include AMN Healthcare
Services, Inc., Cross Country Healthcare, Inc. and InteliStaf Healthcare, Inc.

Professional Liability Insurance

We retain the first $1.0 million, per occurrence, of risk associated with professional liability. We maintain a
professional liability insurance policy for losses in excess of this per occurrence amount. We believe this is
sufficient for the risks associated with our business. Medical malpractice claims against us relating to our healthcare
professionals are defended by our insurance carrier. We have indemnity agreements with many of our clients which




state that we will defend, indemnify and hold harmless those clients against any act of omission or willful or
reckless acts, including negligence and misconduct. A majority of such agreements are reciprocal.

Trademarks and Service Marks

The service mark “Medical Staffing Network, Inc.” (Name and Logo), which was registered with the U.S.
Patent and Trademark Office as of May 6, 2003, and the trade name “Medical Staffing Network” are each owned
and licensed from Medical Staffing Network Assets, LLC, our indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary.

Government Regulation

The healthcare industry is subject to extensive and complex federal and state laws and regulations relating
to professional licensure, conduct of operations, payment for services and payment for referrals. The extensive and
complex laws that apply to our hospital and healthcare facility clients, including laws related to Medicare, Medicaid
and other federal and state healthcare programs, could indirectly affect the demand or the prices paid for our
services. For example, our hospital and healthcare facility clients could suffer civil and/or criminal penalties and/or
be excluded from participating in Medicare, Medicaid and other healthcare programs if they fail to comply with the
laws and regulations applicable to their businesses.

Our business, however, is not directly impacted by or subject to the laws and regulations that generally
govern the healthcare industry, because we provide services on a contract basis and are paid directly by our hospital
and other healthcare facility clients.

Some states require state licensure for businesses that employ and/or assign healthcare personne! to provide
healthcare services on-site at hospitals and other healthcare facilities. We hold a Temporary Healthcare Staffing
License in the following jurisdictions in which we do business that require such licenses: Connecticut, Delaware, the
District of Columbia, Florida, lllinois, Kentucky, Maine, Maryland, Massachusetts, Minnesota, New Jersey, Nevada,
North Carolina, Ohio, Rhode Island, Tennessee, Texas and Washington.

Most of our temporary healthcare professionals are required to be individually licensed or certified under
applicable state laws. We take reasonable steps to ensure that our professionals possess all necessary licenses and
certifications in all material respects. These steps include: each employee must present an original version of a state
issued license; we validate each employee’s identity through government issued photo identification; we call or
verify online each employee’s license with the applicable state board prior to assignment; and, a copy of the license
is maintained in the employee’s personnel file and expiration dates are monitored through MSN HealthWorks.

Seasonality

Due to the regional and seasonal fluctuations in the hospital patient census of our hospital and healthcare
facility clients and due to the seasonal preferences for destinations by our temporary healthcare professionals, the
number of healthcare professionals on assignment, revenue and earnings are subject to moderate seasonal
fluctuations. Many of our hospital and healthcare facility clients are located in areas, particularly Florida, that
experience seasonal fluctuations in population, during the winter and summer months. These facilities adjust their
staffing levels to accommodate the change in this seasonal demand and many of these facilities utilize temporary
healthcare professionals to satisfy these seasonal staffing needs.

Historically, the number of temporary healthcare professionals on assignment has increased from
December through March followed by declines or minimal growth from April through November. This pattern may
or may not continue in the future. As a result of all of these factors, results of any one quarter are not necessarily
indicative of the results to be expected for any other quarter or for any year.




Employees

As of December 25, 2005, we had approximately 1,100 branch, regional operations and corporate office
employees. In addition, during 2005, we employed over 28,000 temporary staff and healthcare professionals. We do
not have any organized labor unions. We believe we have excellent relationships with our employees.

Generally, our per diem and travel staff are our employees. However, our certified registered nurse
anesthetists and anesthesiologists are, and before discontinuation of our physician staffing business our physicians
were, independent contractors. We have not entered into any employment agreements with any of our healthcare
professionals.

Subsequent to fiscal year end, we initiated a plan to restructure our per diem nurse staffing division
whereby certain per diem branches will be closed thereby eliminating certain branch employees. Additionally,
certain operations and corporate staff will be eliminated.

Available Information

We file annual, quarterly and current reports and other information with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. Our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and
amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended, are available free of charge in the “Investor Relations” section of our website at
www.msnhealth.com. These reports, and any amendments to these reports, are made available on our website as
soon as reasonably practicable after such reports are filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange
Commission.

In addition, our website, www.msnhealth.com, includes, free of charge, items related to corporate
governance matters, including our Corporate Governance Guidelines, charters of various committees of our Board
of Directors and our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics applicable to our employees, officers and directors. A
printed copy of our Corporate Governance Guidelines and our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics is available
without charge by sending a written request to: Secretary, Medical Staffing Network Holdings, Inc., 901 Yamato
Road, Suite 110, Boca Raton, Florida 33431. ’

Item 1A. Risk Factors

There are a number of factors, including those specified below, which may adversely affect our business,
financial results or stock price. Additional risks that we do not know about or that we currently view as immaterial may
also impair our business or adversely impact our financial results or stock price.

Risks Related to Our Business and Industry

If we are unable to attract qualified nurses and allied healthcare professionals for our healthcare staffing
business, our business could be negatively impacted.

We rely significantly on our ability to attract and retain nurses and allied healthcare professionals who possess
the skills, experience and licenses necessary to meet the requirements of our hospital and healthcare facility clients. We
compete for healthcare staffing personnel with other temporary healthcare staffing companies and with hospitals and
healthcare facilities. We must continually evaluate and expand our temporary healthcare professional network to keep
pace with our hospital and healthcare facility clients’ needs. Currently, there is a shortage of qualified nurses in most
areas of the United States, competition for nursing personnel is increasing, and salaries and benefits have risen. We
may be unable to continue to increase the number of temporary healthcare professionals that we recruit, thereby
decreasing the potential for growing our business. Our ability to attract and retain temporary healthcare professionals
depends on several factors, including our ability to provide temporary healthcare professionals with assignments that
they view as attractive and to provide them with competitive benefits and wages. We cannot assure you that we will be
successful in any of these areas. The cost of attracting temporary healthcare professionals and providing them with
attractive benefits packages may be higher than we anticipate and, as a result, if we are unable to pass these costs on to



our hospital and healthcare facility clients, our profitability could decline. Moreover, if we are unable to attract and
retain temporary healthcare professionals, the quality of our services to our hospital and healthcare facility clients may
decline and, as a result, we could lose clients.

Contraction of demand for our temporary nurses may continue if hospital admissions levels remain
lower than expected.

Demand for temporary nurses has been experiencing a period of contraction. However, the rate of
contraction has slowed during the past year. Hospitals are experiencing lower than projected admissions levels and
are placing greater reliance on existing full-time staff, resulting in increased overtime and nurse-patient loads.
Consequently, our service revenues and gross profit margins have been under pressure. If these industry trends
continue, our revenues and gross profit margins may decline. In June 2003, we completed a plan to restructure our
operations by closing 29 branches. The restructuring was in response to the current contraction in demand for our
services and was necessary to adjust the infrastructure we had put in place to support multiple growth initiatives.

Subsequent to fiscal year end, we initiated a plan to restructure our per diem nurse staffing division
whereby certain per diem branches will be closed. Additionally, certain operations and corporate staff will be
eliminated. The restructuring was in response to continued weak demand for our per diem nurse staffing services.

Higher unemployment rates could have a negative impact on our ability to successfully recruit
additional healthcare professionals.

We believe that high unemployment rates cause nurses in many households to become primary wage
earners, which in turn causes them to seek more traditional full-time employment. Should unemployment rates
increase, it could be more difficult for us to recruit nurses to become our employees.

We operate in a highly competitive market and our success depends on our ability to remain competitive in
obtaining and retaining hospital and healthcare facility clients and temporary healthcare professionals.

The temporary healthcare staffing business is highly competitive. We compete in national, regional and local
markets with full-service staffing companies and with specialized temporary staffing agencies. Some of our
competitors in the temporary nurse staffing sector are AMN Healthcare Services, Inc., Cross Country Healthcare, Inc.
and InteliStaf Healthcare, Inc. Some of our competitors may have greater marketing and financial resources than we
do. Competition for hospital and healthcare facility clients and temporary healthcare professionals may increase in the
future and, as a result, we may not be able to remain competitive. To the extent competitors seek to gain or retain
market share by reducing prices or increasing marketing expenditures, we could lose revenues or hospital and
healthcare facility clients. Furthermore, our margins could decline, which could seriously harm our operating results
and cause the price of our stock to decline. In addition, the development of alternative recruitment channels could lead
our hospital and healthcare facility clients to bypass our services, which would also cause our revenues and margins to
decline.

Qur business depends upon our continued ability to secure and fill new orders from our hospital and
healthcare facility clients, because we do not have long-term agreements or exclusive contracts with them.

We do not have long-term agreements or exclusive guaranteed order contracts with our hospital and
healthcare facility clients. The success of our business depends upon our ability to continually secure new orders from
hospitals and other healthcare facilities and to fill those orders with our temporary healthcare professionals. Our
hospital and healthcare facility clients are free to place orders with our competitors and may choose to use temporary
healthcare professionals that our competitors offer them. Therefore, we must maintain positive relationships with our
hospital and healthcare facility clients. If we fail to maintain positive relationships with our hospital and healthcare
facility clients, we may be unable to generate new temporary healthcare professional orders and our business may be
adversely affected.




Reacting to concerns over agency utilization in prior years, hospitals and other healthcare facilities have
devised strategies to reduce agency expenditure and limit overall agency utilization. If current pressures to control
agency usage continue and escalate, we will have fewer business opportunities, which could harm our business.

Fluctuations in patient occupancy at our hospital and healthcare facility clients may adversely affect the
demand for our services and therefore the profitability of our business.

Demand for our temporary healthcare staffing services is significantly affected by the general level of patient
occupancy at our hospital and healthcare facility clients. When occupancy increases, hospitals and other healthcare
facilities often add temporary employees before full-time employees are hired. As occupancy decreases, hospitals and
other healthcare facilities typically reduce their use of temporary employees before undertaking layoffs of their regular
employees. In addition, we may experience more competitive pricing pressure during periods of occupancy downtum.
Occupancy at our hospital and healthcare facility clients also fluctuates due to the seasonality of some elective
procedures. We are unable to predict the level of patient occupancy at any particular time and its effect on our revenues
and earnings.

Healthcare reform could negatively impact our business opportunities, revenues and margins.

The U.S. government has undertaken efforts to control increasing healthcare costs through legislation,
regulation and voluntary agreements with medical care providers and drug companies. In the recent past, the U.S.
Congress has considered several comprehensive healthcare reform proposals. The proposals were generally intended to
expand healthcare coverage for the uninsured and reduce the growth of total healthcare expenditures. While the U.S.
Congress did not adopt any comprehensive reform proposals, members of Congress may raise similar proposals in the
future. If any of these proposals are approved, hospitals and other healthcare facilities may react by spending less on
healthcare staffing, including nurses. If this were to occur, we would have fewer business opportunities, which could
seriously harm our business.

Several state governments have also attempted to control increasing healthcare costs. For example, the State
of Massachusetts has implemented a regulation that limits the hourly rate billable by and payable to temporary nursing
agencies for registered nurses, licensed practical nurses and certified nurses’ aides. The State of Minnesota has also
implemented a statute that limits the amount that nursing agencies may charge nursing homes. Several states have also
proposed legislation that would limit the amounts that temporary staffing companies may charge. Any such current or
proposed laws could seriously harm our business, revenues and margins.

Furthermore, third party payors, such as health maintenance organizations, increasingly challenge the prices
charged for medical care. Failure by hospitals and other healthcare facilities to obtain full reimbursement from those
third party payors could reduce the demand or the price paid for our staffing services.

There is a growing trend to restrict mandatory healthcare worker overtime requirements by employers and to
establish nurse-patient ratios. The State of California has already enacted such legislation and several other states have
similar legislation pending. This legislation could ultimately have a potential positive or negative impact on our
business.

We operate in a regulated industry and changes in regulations or violations of regulations may result in
increased costs or sanctions that could reduce our revenues and profitability.

The healthcare industry is subject to extensive and complex federal and state laws and regulations related to
professional licensure, conduct of operations, payment for services and payment for referrals. If we fail to comply with
the laws and regulations that are directly applicable to our business, we could suffer civil and/or criminal penalties or be
subject to injunctions or cease and desist orders.

The extensive and complex laws that apply to our hospital and healthcare facility clients, including laws
related to Medicare, Medicaid and other federal and state healthcare programs, could indirectly affect the demand or
the prices paid for our services. For example, our hospital and healthcare facility clients could suffer civil and/or
criminal penalties and/or be excluded from participating in Medicare, Medicaid and other healthcare programs if they




fail to comply with the laws and regulations applicable to their businesses. In addition, our hospital and healthcare
facility clients could receive reduced reimbursements, or be excluded from coverage, because of a change in the rates
or conditions set by federal or state governments, In turn, violations of or changes to these laws and regulations that
adversely affect our hospital and healthcare facility clients could also adversely affect the prices that these clients are
willing or able to pay for our services.

JCAHO has created a set of standards by which to certify healthcare staffing providers. Healthcare staffing
companies can apply to be reviewed by JCAHO to ensure that they are compliant with the standards. Healthcare
facilities could potentially use only those providers that obtain certification. We went through the voluntary
certification process in 2005 and received JCAHO’s gold seal of approval. Upon subsequent review (which occurs
biannually), should we not meet the standards created by JCAHO, it could potentially have a material effect on our
business.

We are dependent on the proper functioning of our information systems.

We are dependent on the proper functioning of our information systems in operating our business. Critical
information systems used in daily operations identify and match staffing resources and client assignments and
regulatory credentialing scheduling, They also perform billing and accounts receivable functions. Our information
systems are vulnerable to fire, storm, flood, power loss, telecommunications failures, physical or software break-ins
and similar events. If our information systems fail or are otherwise unavailable, these functions would have to be
accomplished manually, which could impact our ability to identify business opportunities quickly, maintain billing and
clinical records reliably, pay our staff in a timely fashion and bill for services efficiently.

Competition for acquisition opportunities may restrict our future growth by limiting our ability to make
acquisitions at reasonable valuations.

Since our founding in 1998, we have completed 28 acquisitions. Qur business strategy includes increasing our
market share and presence in the temporary healthcare staffing industry through strategic acquisitions of companies
that complement or enhance our business. We have historically faced competition for acquisitions. In the future, this
could limit our ability to grow by acquisitions or could raise the prices of acquisitions and make them less accretive to
us. In addition, restrictive covenants in our credit facility, including a covenant that requires us to obtain the approval of
our lenders for any acquisition with a purchase price over $3 million, may limit our ability to complete desirable
acquisitions. If we are unable to secure necessary financing under our credit facility or otherwise, we may be unable to
complete desirable acquisitions.

We may face difficulties integrating our acquisitions into our operations and our acquisitions may be
unsuccessful, involve significant cash expenditures or expose us to unforeseen liabilities.

We continually evaluate opportunities to acquire healthcare staffing companies that complement or enhance
our business and frequently have preliminary acquisition discussions with some of these companies.

These acquisitions involve numerous risks, including:
e potential loss of key employees or clients of acquired companies;
o difficulties integrating acquired personnel and distinct cultures into our business;

o difficulties integrating acquired companies into our operating, financial planning and financial
reporting systems;

o diversion of management attention from existing operations; and

e assumption of liabilities and exposure to unforeseen liabilities of acquired companies, including
liabilities for their failure to comply with healthcare regulations.
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These acquisitions may also involve significant cash expenditures, debt incurrence and integration expenses
that could seriously harm our financial condition and results of operations. Any acquisition may ultimately have a
negative impact on our business and financial condition.

Our ability to borrow under our credit facility may be limited.

On December 22, 2003, we entered into a new credit facility, consisting of a three-year, $65 million asset-
based revolving credit facility and a two-year $17 million term loan. On June 25, 2004, we amended the credit
facility to reduce the revolver capacity from $65.0 million to $60.0 million. In conjunction with the amendment, on
July 1, 2004, we repaid $5.0 million of borrowings under the term loan. The $3.0 million can not be re-borrowed
under the terms of the term loan. On February 24, 2005, we amended the terms of the credit facility whereby the
term loan was reduced to $6.0 million, the applicable margin for the term loan was reduced to 4.5%, the maturity of
the term loan was extended to December 2006 and certain financial covenants were amended. On September 24,
2005 and December 25, 2005, we amended the terms of the credit facility whereby certain financial covenants were
favorably amended and the expiration date was extended to January 2, 2007. The $6.0 million term loan repayment
was funded with borrowings under the revolver. Our ability to borrow under the credit facility is based upon, and
thereby limited by, the amount of our accounts receivable. Any material deterioration in our service revenues could
reduce our borrowing base, which could cause us to lose our ability to borrow additional amounts under the credit
facility. In such a circumstance, the borrowing availability under the credit facility may not be sufficient for our
capital needs. During the year, our lenders amended certain financial covenants present in the revolving credit
facility. If future covenant violations occur and the lenders do not agree to modify the covenants or waive such
violations, our ability to borrow under our credit facility could be severely limited or eliminated which would have a
material negative impact on our ability to fund ongoing operations.

Significant legal actions could subject us to substantial uninsured liabilities.

In recent years, healthcare providers have become subject to an increasing number of legal actions alleging
malpractice, product liability or related legal theories. Many of these actions involve large claims and significant
defense costs. In addition, we may be subject to claims related to torts or crimes committed by our employees or
temporary healthcare professionals. In some instances, we are required to indemnify our clients against some or all of
these risks. A failure of any of our employees or healthcare professionals to observe our policies and guidelines
intended to reduce these risks, relevant client policies and guidelines or applicable federal, state or local laws, rules and
regulations could result in negative publicity, payment of fines or other damages. We retain the first $1.0 million, per
occurrence, of risk associated with professional liability. We maintain a professional liability insurance policy for
losses in excess of this per occurrence amount. Our professional malpractice liability insurance and general liability
insurance coverage may not cover all claims against us or continue to be available to us at a reasonable cost. If we are
unable to maintain adequate insurance coverage or if our insurers deny coverage we may be exposed to substantial
liabilities.

We may be legally liable for damages resulting from our hospital and healthcare facility clients’
mistreatment of our healthcare personnel.,

Because we are in the business of placing our temporary healthcare professionals in the workplaces of other
companies, we are subject to possible claims by our temporary healthcare professionals alleging discrimination, sexual
harassment, negligence and other similar activities by our hospital and healthcare facility clients. The cost of defending
such claims, even if groundless, could be substantial and the associated negative publicity could adversely affect our
ability to attract and retain qualified healthcare professionals in the future.

If we become subject to material liabilities under our self-insured programs, our financial results may be
adversely affected.

We provide for certain types of risk management coverage through a program that is partially self-insured.
We retain the first $1.0 million, per occurrence, of risk associated with professional liability claims. We retain the
first $0.5 million, per occurrence, of risk associated with workers compensation claims. In addition, we provide
medical coverage to our employees through a partially self-insured preferred provider organization. If we become
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subject to substantial uninsured workers compensation claims or medical coverage liabilities, our financial results may
be adversely affected.

QOur operations may deteriorate if we are unable to continue to attract, develop and retain our sales
personnel,

Our success depends upon the performance of our sales personnel, especially regional directors, branch
managers and staffing coordinators. The number of individuals who meet our qualifications for these positions is
limited and we may experience difficulty in attracting qualified candidates. In addition, we commit substantial
resources to the training, development and support of these individuals. Competition for qualified sales personnel in the
line of business in which we operate is strong and there is a risk that we may not be able to retain our sales personnel
after we have expended the time and expense to recruit and train them.

The loss of key senior management personnel could adversely affect our ability to remain competitive.

We believe that the success of our business strategy and our ability to operate profitably depends on the
continued employment of our senior management team, consisting of Robert J. Adamson, Kevin S. Little, N. Larry
McPherson, Patricia G. Donohoe, Lynne Stacy, Jan Casford and Pat Layton. If any members of our senior management
team become unable or unwilling to continue in their present positions, our business and financial results could be
materially adversely affected.

We have a substantial amount of goodwill on our balance sheet. Our level of goodwill may have the effect
of decreasing our earnings or increasing our losses.

As of December 25, 2005, we had $130.6 million of goodwill, net on our balance sheet, which represents the
excess of the total purchase price of our acquisitions over the fair value of the net assets acquired. At December 23,
2005, goodwill represented approximately 64% of our total assets.

Historically, we amortized goodwill on a straight-line basis over the estimated period of future benefit of
20 years. In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations, and
SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. SFAS No. 141 requires that the purchase method of accounting
be used for all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001, as well as all purchase method business
combinations completed after June 30, 2001. SFAS No. 142 requires that, subsequent to January 1, 2002, goodwill not
be amortized but rather that it be reviewed annually for impairment. During the year ended December 25, 2005, we
reevaluated our reporting units and determined that each branch location represented a reporting unit, as opposed to
viewing the entire company as one reporting unit previously. We performed an analysis whereby the historical
goodwill was allocated or “pushed down” to each reporting unit. In accordance with SFAS No. 142, we performed
our annua] review for impairment during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005 by performing a fair value analysis of each
reporting unit. The fair value analysis was completed with the assistance of outside valuation professionals. Based
on that analysis, no impairment was noted at any individual reporting unit. Accordingly, there was no financial
impact in 2005 relating to the change in reporting unit for goodwill impairment testing.

We will continue to perform a reporting unit level fair value analysis impairment test during the fourth
quarter of each year. Should impairment indicators be present, including branches not achieving their expected
operating results, additional analysis will be performed to determine the extent of any impairment and the associated
charge will be recorded to the statement of operations. Should we decide to exit a market and close one or more of
our reporting units, the associated goodwill will be written off with a charge to the statement of operations. Although
it does not affect our cash flow, an impairment charge to earnings has the effect of decreasing our earnings or
increasing our losses, as the case may be. If we are required to take an impairment charge to earnings, our stock price
could be adversely affected.

Subsequent to year end, we decided to close certain per diem nurse branches. As a result, during the first
quarter of 2006, we will take a charge of approximately $3.0 million to write down the associated impaired goodwill.
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QOur costs of providing housing for nurses and other healthcare personnel in our travel business may be
higher than we anticipate and, as a result, our margins could decline.

We currently have approximately 85 apartments on lease throughout the United States. If the costs of renting
apartments and furniture for our nurses and other healthcare personnel increase more than we anticipate and we are
unable to pass such increases on to our clients, our margins may decline. To the extent the length of a nurse’s or other
professional’s housing lease exceeds the term of the nurse’s or other professional’s staffing contract, we bear the risk
that we will be obligated to pay rent for housing we do not use. To limit the costs of unutilized housing, we try to
secure leases with term lengths that match the term lengths of our staffing contracts, which typically last thirteen
weeks. In some housing markets we have had, and believe we will continue to have, difficulty identifying short-term
leases. If we cannot identify a sufficient number of appropriate short-term leases in regional markets, or if, for any
reason, we are unable to efficiently utilize the apartments we do lease, we may be required to pay rent for unutilized
housing or, to avoid such risk, we may forego otherwise profitable opportunities.

Demand for healthcare staffing services is significantly affected by the general level of economic activity
and unemployment in the United States.

When economic activity increases, temporary employees are often added before full-time employees are
hired. However, as economic activity slows, many companies, including our hospital and healthcare facility clients,
reduce their use of temporary employees before laying off full-time employees. In addition, we may experience more
competitive pricing pressure during periods of economic downturn. Therefore, any significant economic downturn
could have a material adverse impact on our condition and results of operations.

QOur executive officers, directors and significant stockholders will be able to influence matters requiring
stockholder approval and could discourage the purchase of our outstanding shares at a premium.

Our executive officers and directors (including their affiliates) control approximately 64% of our outstanding
common stock. Warburg Pincus Private Equity Fund VIII, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership (Warburg Pincus),
owns approximately 48% of our common stock. This concentration of ownership may have the effect of delaying,
preventing or deterring a change in control of our company, could deprive our stockholders of an opportunity to receive
a premium for their common stock as part of a sale or merger of our company and may negatively affect the market
price of our common stock. These transactions might include proxy contests, tender offers, mergers or other purchases
of common stock that could give our stockholders the opportunity to realize a premium over the then-prevailing market
price for shares of our common stock.

Warburg Pincus has the right under our stockholders agreement to designate two persons to our Board of
Directors. As a result of this share ownership and minority representation on our Board of Directors, our current
stockholders, in particular Warburg Pincus, will be able to influence all affairs and actions of our company, including
matters requiring stockholder approval such as the election of directors and approval of significant corporate
transactions. The interests of our executive officers, directors and principal stockholders may differ from the interests of
the other stockholders.

Warburg Pincus and certain significant stockholders have demand registration rights to cause us to file, at any
time and at our expense, a registration statement under the Securities Act covering resales of their shares. These shares
represent approximately 48% of our outstanding common stock, or approximately 14.5 million shares. These shares
may also be sold under Rule 144 of the Securities Act, depending on their holding period and subject to significant
restrictions in the case of shares held by persons deemed to be our affiliates.

If provisions in our corporate documents and Delaware law delay or prevent a change in control of our
company, we may be unable to consummate a transaction that our stockholders consider favorable.

Provisions in our certificate of incorporation and bylaws may discourage, delay or prevent a merger or
acquisition involving us that our stockholders may consider favorable. For example, our certificate of incorporation
authorizes our Board of Directors to issue up to 15 million shares of “blank check” preferred stock. Without
stockholder approval, the Board of Directors has the authority to attach special rights, including voting and dividend
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rights, to this preferred stock. With these rights, preferred stockholders could make it more difficult for a third party to
acquire us. Applicable Delaware law may also discourage, delay or prevent someone from acquiring or merging with
us.
Our stock price may be volatile and your investment in our common stock could suffer a decline in value.
With the current uncertainty about healthcare policy, reimbursement and coverage in the United States, there
has been significant volatility in the market price and trading volume of securities of healthcare and other companies,
which is unrelated to the financial performance of these companies. These broad market fluctuations may negatively
affect the market price of our common stock.
Some specific factors that may have a significant effect on our common stock market price include:
e  actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operating results;
e  actual or anticipated changes in our growth rates or our competitors’ growth rates;
e  actual or anticipated changes in healthcare policy in the United States and internationally;
¢  conditions in the financial markets in general or changes in general economic conditions;
s our inability to raise additional capital;

o  conditions of other healthcare staffing companies or the medical staffing industry generally; and

e  changes in stock market analyst recommendations regarding our common stock, other comparable
companies or the healthcare staffing industry generally.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties

Our U.S. corporate headquarters is located in Boca Raton, Florida and has an aggregate of 50,000 square
feet. We operate on a national basis with a presence in 40 states and 120 locations as of December 25, 2005. The
facilities at our headquarters and at each of our locations are leased. The lease to our headquarters expires in 2013.
We believe that our properties are adequate for our current needs. In addition, we believe that adequate space can be
obtained to meet our foreseeable business needs. As of December 25, 2005, we have two material operating leases.
They include our corporate headquarters lease and a lease for approximately 32,000 square feet in Warrenville,
Ilinois, where our allied health and travel divisions are concentrated.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

On February 20, 2004, Joseph and Patricia Marrari, and on April 16, 2004, Tommie Williams, filed class
action lawsuits against Medical Staffing Network in the United States District Court for the Southern District of
Florida, on behalf of themselves and purchasers of our common stock pursuant to or traceable to our initial public
offering in April 2002. These lawsuits also named as defendants certain of our directors and executive officers
(collectively with Medical Staftfing Network, the “Defendants™). The complaints allege that certain disclosures in the
Registration Statement/Prospectus filed in connection with our initial public offering on April 17, 2002 were materially
false and misleading in violation of the Securities Act of 1933 (the “Securities Act”). The complaints seek
compensatory damages as well as costs and attorney fees.

On March 29, 2004, a third class action lawsuit brought on behalf of the same class of our stockholders,
making claims under the Securities Act similar to those in the lawsuits filed by Plaintiffs Joseph and Patricia Marrari
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and Tommie Williams, was commenced by Plaintiff Haddon Zia in the Florida Circuit Court of the Fifteenth Judicial
Circuit in and for Palm Beach County, Florida. Defendants removed this case to the United States District Court for the
Southern District of Florida and Plaintiff moved to remand the case back to the Florida Circuit Court of the Fifteenth
Judicial Circuit, which motion Defendants opposed. On September 16, 2004 the federal district court entered an order
granting Plaintiff’s motion to remand. On January 6, 2003, the state court stayed the state court proceedings until
further order of the court. The Zia complaint seeks rescission or damages as well as certain equitable relief and costs
and attorney fees.

On March 2, 2004, another class action complaint was filed against Medical Staffing Network and certain of
our directors and executive officers in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida by Jerome
Gould, individually and on behalf of a class of Medical Staffing Network's stockholders who purchased stock during
the period from April 18, 2002 through June 16, 2003. The complaint alleges that certain of our public disclosures
during the class period were materially false and misleading in violation of Section 10(b) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”), and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder. The complaint seeks compensatory
damages, costs and attorney fees.

On July 2, 2004, the Marrari, Gould, Williams and Zia actions were consolidated, although, as noted above,
the Zia action was subsequently remanded to state court. Plaintiff Thomas Greene was appointed Lead Plaintiff of the
consolidated action and the law firm of Cauley Geller Bowman & Rudman LLP (now known as Lerach Coughlin Stoia
Geller Rudman and Robbins LLP) was appointed Plaintiffs’ Lead Counsel.

On September 1, 2004, Lead Plaintiff filed his consolidated amended class action complaint (the
“Complaint”). The Complaint makes allegations on behalf of a class consisting of purchasers of our common stock
pursuant to or traceable to our initial public offering in April 2002, for purposes of the Securities Act claims, and on
behalf of Medical Staffing Network’s stockholders who purchased stock during the period from April 18, 2002 through
June 16, 2003, for purposes of the Exchange Act claims. The Complaint alleges that certain of our public disclosures
during the class period were materially false and misleading in violation of Section 11 of the Securities Act and Section
10(b) of the Exchange Act. The Complaint seeks compensatory damages as well as costs and attorney fees. Defendants
have filed a motion to dismiss the Complaint, which, on September 27, 2005, was granted in part as to those portions of
Plaintiffs’ Section 10(b) and 20(2) claims concerning statements or omissions prior to October 29, 2002, and denied as
to the remaining claims. The litigation is now proceeding as to those portions of the complaint that were not dismissed.

We believe that these lawsuits are without merit and we intend to defend ourselves against them vigorously.
Due to their preliminary status, we are unable to predict the outcome of these lawsuits or reasonably estimate a range of
possible loss.

From time to time, we are subject to lawsuits and claims that arise out of our operations in the normal course
of business. We are plaintiffs or defendants in various litigation matters in the ordinary course of business, some of
which involve claims for damages that are substantial in amount. We believe that the disposition of any claims that
arise out of operations in the normal course of business will not have a material adverse effect on our financial position
or results of operations.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

There were no matters submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year
ended December 25, 2005.
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PART 11

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities

The following table sets forth, for the fiscal quarters indicated, the high and low sales prices per share of
our common stock, as reported by the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE).

Hich Low

2004:

First QUArter .....cc.oovieiiereec et ce e § 1231 $ 7.10
Second QUAITEL.........cvcveeeeieriecrieecrr v $ 8.82 3 5.35
Third QUAITET.......coeviiieiee e $ 7.10 3 5.16
Fourth QUATTET......ccooveveeeeeisiieieieeieee ettt 3 8.75 3 5.87
2005:

First QUATTET .o.ovv.vcvceri e $ 8.31 $ 6.00
Second QUATTET.......ccoovveeereeecr et $ 6.94 $ 4.52
Third QUATTET.......eeveiee e 3 6.75 3 4.66
Fourth Quarter.........cocormrenecinnnnnnere e $ 6.22 $ 4.72

Our common stock has traded on the NYSE under the symbol “MRN” since our initial public offering on
April 17, 2002. Prior to that time, there was no public trading market for our common stock.

As of March 1, 2006, there were 18 holders of record of our common stock, which numbers do not reflect
stockholders who beneficially own common stock held in nominee or street name.

We have never declared or paid cash dividends on our common stock. We currently intend to retain all
future earnings for the operation and expansion of our business and, therefore, do not anticipate declaring or paying
cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future. Except as otherwise restricted by our current senior
credit facility, any payment of cash dividends on our common stock will be at the discretion of our Board of
Directors and will depend upon our results of operations, earnings, capital requirements, contractual restrictions and
other factors deemed relevant by our Board of Directors. Our current senior credit facility prohibits us and our
subsidiaries from declaring or paying any dividends or any other distributions without the consent of lenders holding
more than 50% of the loans under the facility (or if a single lender holds more then 50% of the loans under the
facility, the consent of that lender and at least one other lender is required), except that we and our subsidiaries may
pay dividends or make other distributions to each other, except further that our operating subsidiary may pay
dividends or make other distributions to us to be used to pay our operating expenses in an amount up to $500,000 in
the aggregate in any fiscal year.

We did not repurchase any shares of our common stock during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended
December 25, 2005.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The selected Consolidated Statement of Operations data for the years ended December 25, 2005, December
26, 2004, and December 28, 2003 and the selected Consolidated Balance Sheet data as of December 25, 2005 and
December 26, 2004 are derived from our audited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this annual
report. The selected Consolidated Statement of Operations data for the years ended December 29, 2002 and
December 30, 2001 and the selected Consolidated Balance Sheet data as of December 28, 2003, December 29, 2002,
and December 30, 2001 are dertved from our audited consolidated financial statements not included in this annual
report. Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year amounts to conform to the 2005 presentation.

In the following tables, we provide you with select consolidated financial data and other operating
information of Medical Staffing Network which should be read in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and our audited consolidated financial statements and
accompanying notes included in this annual report.

Fiscal Years Ended

2008 2004 2003 2002 2001

Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:

(in thousands, except per share data)

SErvICE TEVENUES........cooviireieeirereeereeresssere e e 402,507 § 417,058 $ 512,985 $ 478,827 338,229
Cost of services rendered 314,341 327,075 398,224 358,394 253,139
Gross Profit....c.ccnvcenceennree e 88,166 89,983 114,761 120,433 85,090
Selling, general and administrative expenses ........ 81,087 82,067 90,519 78,102 53,221
Depreciation and amortization expenses(l)........... 5,259 6,316 6,773 4,486 5,870
Other ..ot e 512 - - - -
Recapitalization Xpenses ..........oveervreeieinnennenen, - — — - 7.160
Income from operations ..........occcceerveiciinnienenen, 1,308 1,600 17,469 37,845 18,839
Loss on early extinguishment of debt(2) ............... - - 3,555 - 4,380
Interest eXpense, Net.....c.cooovvivcecirierineeerrnierenns 2,767 3.541 4,685 7,603 14312
Income (loss) from continuing operations before

provision for (benefit from) income taxes .......... (1,459) (1,941) 9,229 30,242 147
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes............. (660) (615) 3.708 12,400 1,794
Income (loss) from continuing operations............. (799) (1,326) 5,521 17,842 (1,647)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net

OF LAXES oo e - - (506) 52 341
Net InCome (1088 ).c.cvvvrrrereriricreeerecre e, (799) (1,326) 5,015 17,894 (1,300)
Deduct required dividends on convertible

preferred stock(3) ..o, - — - 3.099 1,804
Income (loss) available to common stockholders.. (799 $§ 1,326) ¢ 5,015 $ 14,795 (3.110)
Income (loss) per share — basic:
Income (loss) from continuing operations.............. 0.03) $ 0.04) $ 0.18 § 0.70 0.54)
Discontinued operations, net of taxes .................... - - (0.01) - 0.05
Basic net income (loss) per share........coocoevnan 0.03) § 004) & 017 3 0.70 (0.49)
Income (loss) per share — diluted:
Income (loss) from continuing operations............. 0.03) § 004) § 018 § 0.62 (0.54)
Discontinued operations, net of taxes..................... - - (0.02) - 0.05
Diluted net income (loss) per share...............c........ 0.03) $§ (0.04) § 016 § 0.62 {0.49)
Weighted average common shares outstanding:

BASIC cvveeeceeeetete e s 30,233 30,228 30,190 21,177 6,338
DHIUEE oo 30,233 30,228 30,807 28,637 6,338

Other Operating Data:
Number of per diem branches at yearend.............. 120 126 146 181 136
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As of Fiscal Years Ended
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

(in thousands)
Balance Sheet Data:

Cash and cash equIvValents .........c.ccceeeverrierereennnnsivicnnens $ 42 3 345 $ 825 § 4,595 § 11,253
TOMAl ASSELS .. cvcvevriiniriereneniatirerereeeenne s seeeien e ercsceeaene 204,916 210,903 228,870 248,083 162,019
Total liabilities and redeemable preferred stock ............. 55,668 60,877 77,583 102,415 319,741
Total common stockholders’ equity (deficit)................... 149,248 150,026 151,287 145,668 (157,722)
(@) Pursuant to provisions of SFAS No. 142, in 2002 we ceased amortizing goodwill and certain intangible assets with an indefinite useful

life period.
@) Pursuant to the provisions of SFAS No. 145, which we adopted December 29, 2002, we were required to reclassify our extraordinary loss

on early extinguishment of debt of $2.7 million, net of tax benefit of $1.7 million, related to the October 2001 recapitalization transaction
into income from continuing operations.

3) Reflects 8% dividends accrued on the Series I Convertible Preferred Stock issued in connection with the recapitalization. This preferred
stock was converted into common stock upon completion of our initial public offering.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Introduction

Management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations is provided as a
supplement to our consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes to help provide an understanding of
our financial condition, changes in financial condition and results of operations. The discussion and analysis is
organized as follows:

e Qverview. This section provides a general description of our business, trends in our industry, as well as
significant transactions that have occurred that we believe are important in understanding our financial
condition and results of operations.

®  Recent accounting pronouncements. This section provides an analysis of relevant recent accounting
pronouncements issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) and the effect of those
pronouncements.

e Results of operations. This section provides an analysis of our results of operations for all three years
presented in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

o Liquidity and capital resources. This section provides an analysis of our cash flows, capital resources, off-
balance sheet arrangements and our outstanding debt and commitments as of December 25, 2005.

e (Critical accounting policies. This section discusses those accounting policies that are both considered
important to our financial condition and results of operations, and require significant judgment and
estimates on the part of management in their application. In addition, all of our significant accounting
policies, including the critical accounting policies, are summarized in Note 1 to the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

e Caution concerning forward-looking statements. This section discusses how certain forward-looking

statements made by us throughout this discussion and analysis are based on management’s present
expectations about future events and are inherently susceptible to uncertainty and changes in circumstance.
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Overview
Business Description

We are a leading temporary healthcare staffing company and the largest provider of per diem nurse staffing
services in the United States as measured by revenues. More than two-thirds of our clients are acute care hospitals,
clinics and surgical and ambulatory care centers. We serve both for-profit and not-for-profit organizations that range
in scope from one facility to national chains with over 100 facilities. Our clients pay us directly. We do not receive a
material portion of our revenues from Medicare or Medicaid reimbursements or similar state reimbursement
programs.

Our per diem nurse staffing division currently operates in an integrated network of branches that are
organized into several geographic regions. These branches serve as our direct contact with our healthcare
professionals and clients. The cost structure of a typical branch is substantially fixed, consisting of limited
personnel, office space rent, information systems infrastructure and office supplies. We have been able to develop a
highly efficient branch management model that is easily scalable. During 2004, we expanded our services to provide
temporary general staffing. Our per diem general staffing assignments place individuals in a variety of areas
including clerical, janitorial and food services. We believe that general staffing compliments our temporary
healthcare staffing and makes us a full service provider to our existing clients.

Industry Trends

Service revenues and gross profit margins have been under pressure as demand for temporary nurses has
been going through a period of contraction. However, the rate of contraction has slowed during the past year. Due to
the current difficult economic times, the unemployment rate, while slightly improved over the past year, remains
relatively high. We believe this has resulted in nurses in many households becoming a primary wage earner, which
is causing such nurses to seek more traditional full-time employment. Additionally, hospitals are experiencing lower
than projected admissions levels and are placing greater reliance on existing full-time staff, resulting in increased
overtime and nurse-patient loads.

We cannot predict when conditions will reverse, but we are confident in the long-term growth of the
industry. In a January 13, 2000 report, the U.S. Census Bureau, Population Projections Bureau, projected that the
number of Americans over 65 years of age is expected to grow from 34.5 million in 2000 to 53.7 million in 2020. In
a July 2002 report, the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services stated that the national supply of full-time
equivalent registered nurses was approximately 1.9 million while demand was approximately 2.0 million. This gap
between supply and demand for nurses is expected to grow from 0.1 million in 2000 to 0.8 million by 2020.
Additionally, there is a growing trend to restrict mandatory healthcare worker overtime requirements by employers
and to establish nurse-patient ratios. Several states have enacted legislation prohibiting mandatory overtime and
other states have similar legislation pending. In conjunction with the aforementioned factors, as the economy
rebounds, the prospects for the healthcare staffing industry should improve as hospitals experience higher census
levels and increasing shortages of healthcare workers.

Acquisitions

In 2005, we purchased substantially all of the assets of two healthcare staffing companies for an aggregate
purchase price of $1.9 million. In 2004, we made no acquisitions. In 2003, we purchased substantially all of the
assets of one healthcare staffing company for an aggregate purchase price of $10.8 million. All such acquisitions
were accounted for as purchases and, accordingly, the results of these acquired businesses are included in our
consolidated financial statements from the acquisition dates or the dates when we assumed substantial control.
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Discontinued Operations

We discontinued our physician staffing services in the second quarter of 2003. Pursuant to the provisions of
the FASB Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal
of Long-Lived Assets (SFAS No. 144), results of operations are to be classified as discontinued when the disposal of the
“component of an entity” has occurred or it has met the “held for sale” criteria. As such, the total is shown separately in
the line item, income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of taxes, in our consolidated statement of operations. For
the year ended December 28, 2003, we had a loss from discontinued operations, net of taxes, of approximately $0.5
million.

Restructuring Charge

Subsequent to fiscal year end, we initiated a plan to restructure our per diem nurse staffing division, due to
the continued challenging market conditions. This initiative includes certain per diem branch closures along with
corresponding elimination of certain branch positions. Additionally, certain operations and corporate staff will be
climinated. As a result of these initiatives, we expect to incur a charge of approximately $6.0 million in the first
quarter of 2006. The charge will be comprised of approximately $3.0 million primarily related to severance costs
and lease termination fees and approximately $3.0 million in non-cash goodwill impairment related to the branch
closures. We do not expect to realize the full benefits of this initiative until the third quarter of 2006.

On June 16, 2003, we completed our plan to restructure our operations by closing 29 branches. The
restructuring was necessary to adjust the infrastructure we had put in place to support multiple growth initiatives and
was in response to the current contraction in demand for our services. As a result, in the second quarter of 2003, we
recorded a pre-tax charge, of approximately $0.8 million, relating to employee severance costs, branch closing costs
and lease termination costs. The restructuring charge is included in selling, general and administrative expenses in our
consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 28, 2003. No amounts have been or are expected to
be incurred or paid in subsequent quarters relating to this restructuring.

Loss on Early Extinguishment of Debt

In December 2003, we entered into a new credit facility. The $82.0 million facility was comprised of a
three-year $65.0 million revolving credit facility and a two-year $17.0 million term loan. Approximately $60.0
million of proceeds from the credit facility were used to refinance all of our existing debt and to pay financing
related fees. The remaining borrowing availability was to be used for working capital and general business purposes.
As aresult of the prepayment of the facility, we recorded a charge of approximately $3.6 million to write off debt
issuance costs associated with the extinguished facility. The charge appears in the line item loss on early
extinguishment of debt on the consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 28, 2003.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Stock-Based Compensation

In December 2004, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (SFAS) No. 123 (revised
2004), Share-Based Payment, (SFAS No. 123(R)) which is a revision of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation (SFAS No. 123). Statement 123(R) supersedes Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25,
Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, (APB No. 25). SFAS No. 123(R) requires all share-based payments to
employees, including grants of employee stock options, to be recognized in the income statement based on their fair
values. Pro forma disclosure is no longer an alternative. Additionally, SFAS No. 123(R) amends the presentation of
the statement of cash flows and requires additional annual disclosures. SFAS No. 123(R) is effective for public
companies beginning with the first interim period that begins after June 15, 2005. In April 2003, the Securities and
Exchange Commiission adopted a new rule that postponed the effective date for SFAS No. 123(R) to the fiscal year
beginning after June 15, 2005. We adopted SFAS No. 123(R} on December 26, 2005, using the modified
prospective method. As permitted by SFAS No. 123, we currently account for share-based payments to employees
using the intrinsic value method in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles of APB No. 25,
and, as such, generally recognize no compensation cost for employee stock options, as options granted under our
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plans have an exercise price equal to or greater than the fair value of the underlying common stock on the date of
grant.

On December 1, 2005, our Compensation Committee accelerated the vesting of all of our unvested stock
options awarded to employees under our 2001 Stock Incentive Plan (with the exception of three of our officers, who
only had their options that were scheduled to vest in 2006 accelerated). As a result of the acceleration, options to
acquire approximately 374,000 shares of our common stock (representing approximately 18% of the total
outstanding options), which otherwise would have vested periodically over the next 48 months, became immediately
exercisable. Approximately 50% of the accelerated options would have vested in 2006. If we had already adopted
the fair value method, the acceleration of the options would have increased compensation expense by approximately
$1.0 million in 2005 and would have decreased compensation expense by approximately $0.5 million in 2006, $0.3
million in 2007 and $0.1 million in 2008.

Our Compensation Committee’s decision to accelerate the vesting of these options was in response to the
issuance of SFAS No. 123(R). By accelerating the vesting of these options, we have minimized the potential
compensation expense that will be required to be recognized in future periods under SFAS No. 123(R). However,
the impact of adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), which is not expected to be material, cannot be predicted at this time
because it will depend on levels of share-based payments granted in the future. Had we adopted SFAS No. 123(R) in
prior periods, its impact would have approximated the impact of SFAS No. 123 as described in the disclosure of pro
forma net income and earnings per share in Stock-Based Compensation (Note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements).

Changes in Accounting Principles

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections, which replaces
APB No. 20, Accounting Changes, and SFAS No. 3, Reporting Accounting Changes in Interim Financial
Statements. This Statement requires retrospective application to prior periods’ financial statements of changes in
accounting principles, unless it is impracticable to determine the period specific effects or cumulative effect of the
change. When it is impracticable to determine the period specific effects of an accounting change on one or more
individual prior periods presented, this Statement requires that the new accounting principle be applied to the
balances of assets and liabilities at the beginning of the earliest period for which retrospective application is
practicable and a corresponding adjustment is to be made to the opening balance of retained earnings for that period.
When it is impracticable to determine the cumulative effect of applying a change in accounting principle to all prior
periods, it requires that the new accounting principle be applied as if it were adopted prospectively from the earliest
date practicable. This Statement defines “retrospective application” as the application of a different accounting
principle to prior accounting periods as if that principle had always been used or as the adjustment of previously
issued financial statements to reflect a change in the reporting entity. It also redefines “restatement” as the revising
of previously issued financial statements to reflect the correction of an error. This Statement also requires that a
change in depreciation, amortization, or depletion method for long-lived, nonfinancial assets be accounted for as a
change in accounting estimate effected by a change in accounting principle. It is effective for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2005. The impact of adoption of this statement is not expected to be significant.
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, certain selected financial data:

Fiscal Year Ended
2005 2004 2003

SEIVICE TEVEIUES .....cvvvrririeieieiereteieeer ettt eseesesssa s sscsebse s esesesstsssanenncs 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Cost of services rendered..........coov i e 78.1 78.4 77.6
GTOSS PLOTIE oottt e e 21.9 21.6 22.4
Selling, general and administrative EXPenSEeS ......c.cvvrcrcerrrereenerrenreienceeeriesneenee 20.1 19.7 17.7
Depreciation and amortization EXPENSES..........cweeeereerverieremreererrorearmereniereesencsrene 1.3 1.5 1.3
Income from OPETALIONS. .......covvvveirierrteeiet ettt e nns 0.3 0.4 34
Loss on early extinguishment of debt ..........cccccovmnricnnnecncee s - - 0.7
INEEIESt EXPEIISE, NMEL....oeviveiieiereriseere et asiesesssse e e eesess s sessscsesas s ensssebssnentene 0.7 0.9 0.9
Income (loss) from continuing operations before provision for (benefit

TrOM) INCOIME tAXES 1.uvvivivierie et ete ettt s e sttt sesasesaeaene s (0.4) (0.5) 1.8
Provision for (benefit from) iNCOME tAXES ......ovevvrererirerieiriie et 0.2) (0.2) 0.7
Income (loss) from CONtINUING OPETALIONS ....e.vievireeririreenieireeireree e reenee e anceenes 0.2) 0.3) 1.1
Loss from discontinued operations, Net 0f taXeS......cc.vvvivvieerrernerceniorerennecseneennens - - 0.1)
INEL INCOME (L0SS) ..v.vrvrmeeeireresieirieresees et riereseriisassesasee s s basesases b sessseassaterassrserasessnsens ©0.2) (0.3) 1.0

Comparison of Year Ended December 25, 2005 to Year Ended December 26, 2004

Service Revenues. Service revenues decreased $14.6 million, or 3.5%, to $402.5 million for the year ended
December 25, 2005, as compared to $417.1 million for the prior year. The decrease was due to a lower number of
hours worked by professionals caused by the current weak demand for temporary healthcare staffing, partially offset
by revenues from an acquisition in the second quarter of 2005. Average hourly billing rates remained relatively
consistent with those in the prior year.

Per diem nurse staffing revenues decreased $19.0 million, or 6.1%, to $292.2 million for the year ended
December 25, 2005 as compared to $311.2 million for the prior year. The decrease was primarily due to a decrease
in the number of hours worked by professionals.

Revenues from other than per diem nurse staffing, collectively, increased $4.4 million, or 4.2%, to
$110.3 million for the year ended December 25, 2005 as compared to $105.9 million for the prior year. The
increase primarily reflects a higher number of hours worked by non-nursing professionals, including allied health
professionals, coupled with a full-year of general staffing business.

Cost of Services Rendered. Cost of services rendered decreased $12.7 million, or 3.9%, to $314.3 million
for the year ended December 25, 2005 as compared to $327.1 million for the prior year. The decrease was due to a
lower number of hours worked by professionals, partially offset by higher compensation and benefits associated
with our healthcare professionals.

Gross Profit. Gross profit decreased $1.8 million, or 2.0%, to $88.2 million for the year ended December
25, 2005 as compared to $90.0 million for the prior year. The decrease was primarily due to the reduction in service
revenues. Gross margin for the year ended December 25, 2005 was 21.9% as compared with 21.6% for the prior
year. The increase was primarily due to favorable claims experience under our self insurance programs for workers
compensation.

Selling, General and Administrative. Selling, general and administrative expenses decreased to
$81.1 million, or 20.1% of revenues for the year ended December 25, 2005, as compared to $82.1 million, or 19.7%
of revenues for the prior year. The decrease was primarily due to a reduction in bad debt expense due to favorable
collection history and other cost reduction measures.
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Other. Other represents legal and professional fees and other expenses associated with due diligence
performed related to a potential acquisition that was ultimately not completed.

Depreciation and Ameortization. Depreciation and amortization decreased to $5.3 million for the year
ended December 25, 2005, as compared to $6.3 million for the prior year. The decrease was due to'more assets
becoming fully depreciated during 2005.

Interest Expense, Net. Interest expense, net, decreased to $2.8 million for the year ended December 235,
2005 as compared to $3.5 million for the prior year. The decrease was primarily due to lower average outstanding
borrowings.

Provision for (Benefit from) Income Taxes. Our effective income tax benefit rate for the year ended
December 25, 2005 was 45.2% as compared to an effective income tax benefit rate of 31.7% in the prior year. The
increase in the effective tax benefit rate was primarily due to state income tax planning initiatives having a larger
impact in 2005 than in 2004.

Net Income (Loss). As a result of the above, we incurred a net loss of $0.8 million for the year ended
December 25, 2005 as compared to a net loss of $1.3 million for the prior year.

Comparison of Year Ended December 26, 2004 to Year Ended December 28, 2003

Service Revenues. Service revenues decreased $95.9 million, or 18.7%, to $417.1 million for the year
ended December 26, 2004 as compared to $513.0 million for the prior year. The decrease was due to a lower number
of hours worked by professionals caused by the current weak demand for temporary healthcare staffing, partially
offset by revenues from the acquisition we made in the first quarter of 2003. Average hourly billing rates remained
relatively consistent with those in the prior year.

Per diem nurse staffing revenues decreased $59.0 million, or 15.9%, to $311.2 million for the year ended
December 26, 2004 as compared to $370.2 million for the prior year. The decrease was primarily due to a decrease
in the number of hours worked by professionals.

Revenues from other than per diem nurse staffing collectively decreased $36.9 million, or 25.8%, to
$105.9 million for the year ended December 26, 2004 as compared to $142.8 million for the prior year. The decrease
was the result of a lower number of hours worked by professionals.

Cost of Services Rendered. Cost of services rendered decreased $71.1 million, or 17.9%, to $327.1 million
for the year ended December 26, 2004 as compared to $398.2 million for the prior year. The decrease was due to a
lower number of hours worked by professionals, partially offset by higher compensation and benefits associated
with our healthcare professionals.

Gross Profit. Gross profit decreased $24.8 million, or 21.6%, to $90.0 million for the year ended
December 26, 2004 as compared to $114.8 million for the prior year. The decrease was primarily due to the
reduction in service revenues coupled with a decrease in gross margin. Gross margin for the year ended December
26, 2004 was 21.6% as compared with 22.4% for the prior year period. The decrease was primarily due to higher
benefits and insurance costs associated with our healthcare professionals and other direct costs.

Selling, General and Administrative. Selling, general and administrative expenses decreased to
$82.1 million, or 19.7% of revenues for the year ended December 26, 2004, as compared to $90.5 million, or 17.6%
of revenues for the prior year. The decrease was primarily due to the elimination of expenses associated with
locations closed and other cost reduction programs implemented as part of a restructuring initiative that was
implemented in the second quarter of 2003. Additionally, the second quarter of 2003 included an $0.8 million
restructuring charge associated with the restructuring initiative.

Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation and amortization decreased to $6.3 million for the year
ended December 26, 2004, as compared to $6.8 million for the prior year.
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Loss on Early Extinguishment of Debt. There was no loss from the early extinguishment of debt in 2004.
There was a loss on early extinguishment of debt of $3.6 million in 2003 due to the December 2003 refinancing.

Interest Expense, Net. Interest expense, net, decreased to $3.5 million for the year ended December 26,
2004 as compared to $4.7 million for the prior year. The decrease was primarily due to lower average outstanding
borrowings.

Provision for (Benefit from) Income Taxes. Our effective income tax benefit rate for the year ended
December 26, 2004 was 31.7% as compared to an effective income tax provision rate of 40.2% in the prior year.
The decrease in the effective tax benefit rate was due to nondeductible items having a greater percentage impact on
the rate than on the actual tax dollar amount.

Loss from Discontinued Operations, Net of Taxes. There was no loss from discontinued operations for
the year ended December 26, 2004 as compared to a loss from discontinued operations, net of taxes, of $0.5 million
for the prior year. In the second quarter of 2003, we discontinued our physician staffing services.

Net Income (Loss). As a result of the above, we incurred a net loss of $1.3 million for the year ended
December 26, 2004 as compared to net income of $5.0 million for the prior year.

Seasonality

Due to the regional and seasonal fluctuations in the hospital patient census of our hospital and healthcare
facility clients and due to the seasonal preferences for destinations by our temporary healthcare professionals, the
number of healthcare professionals on assignment, revenue and earnings are subject to moderate seasonal
fluctuations. Many of our hospital and healthcare facility clients are located in areas, particularly Florida, that
experience seasonal fluctuations in population, during the winter and summer months. These facilities adjust their
staffing levels to accommodate the change in this seasonal demand and many of these facilities utilize temporary
healthcare professionals to satisfy these seasonal staffing needs.

Historically, the number of temporary healthcare professionals on assignment has increased from
December through March followed by declines or minimal growth from April through November. This trend may or
may not continue in the future. As a result of all of these factors, results of any one quarter are not necessarily
indicative of the results to be expected for any other quarter or for any year.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Discussion on Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our historical capital resource requirements have been the funding of working capital, debt service, capital
expenditures and acquisitions. We have historically funded these requirements from a combination of cash flow
from operations, equity issuances and borrowings under our credit facilities.

Cash flow from operations was $12.9 million for the year ended December 25, 2005 as compared to $26.7
million for the year ended December 26, 2004. During the year ended December 25, 2005, we used cash generated
from operations to repay $8.2 million of borrowings under our senior credit facility and capital lease obligations.

As of December 23, 2005, we had net working capital of $41.9 million as compared to $49.9 million as of
December 26, 2004. The decrease was primarily due to a reduction in accounts receivable and prepaid expenses.

Available borrowings under our senior credit facility is an important component of our liquidity. On
December 22, 2003, we entered into a new senior credit facility (the Senior Credit Facility) which replaced the
previous facility. The Senior Credit Facility provided a $65.0 million revolving credit facility (the Revolver) which
expires in December 2006 and a $17.0 million term loan (the Term Loan) which was due in December 2005.
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On June 25, 2004, we amended the Senior Credit Facility to reduce the Revolver capacity from $65.0
million to $60.0 million. The amendment also favorably modified certain financial covenants while increasing the
applicable margin on the Revolver by 0.5% and on the Term Loan by 1.0%. In conjunction with the amendment, on
July 1, 2004, we repaid $5.0 million of borrowings under the Term Loan. The $5.0 million can not be re-borrowed
under the terms of the Term Loan. The impact of repaying the higher average interest rate borrowings under the
Term Loan, offset partially by the marginally higher interest rates, will reduce the overall cost of capital under the
Senior Credit Facility going forward.

On February 24, 2005, we amended the terms of the Senior Credit Facility whereby the Term Loan was
reduced to $6.0 million, the applicable margin for the Term Loan was reduced, the maturity of the Term Loan was
extended to December 2006 and certain financial covenants were favorably amended. The $6.0 million Term Loan
repayment was funded with borrowings under the Revolver.

On September 24, 2005 and December 25, 2005, we amended the terms of the Senior Credit Facility
whereby certain financial covenants were favorably amended and the expiration date was extended to January 2,
2007.

The amount that can be borrowed at any given time under the Revolver is based on a formula that takes
into account, among other things, eligible accounts receivable and an availability reserve, which can result in
borrowing availability of less than the full capacity of the Revolver. The Revolver bears interest at either prime rate
or LIBOR plus an applicable margin (6.6% at December 25, 2005) with interest payable monthly or as interest rate
contracts expire. The Term Loan bears interest at LIBOR plus an applicable margin (8.5% at December 25, 2005)
with interest payable as interest rate contacts expire. Unused capacity under the Revolver bears interest at 0.5% and
is payable monthly. The Senior Credit Facility is secured by substantially all of our assets and contains certain
covenants that, among other things, limit the payment of dividends, restrict additional indebtedness and obligations,
and require maintenance of certain financial ratios. As of December 25, 2005, we were in compliance with all
covenants.

As the borrower under the Senior Credit Facility, our subsidiary, Medical Staffing Network, Inc., may only
pay dividends or make other distributions to us in the amount of $500,000 in any fiscal year to pay our operating
expenses. This limitation on our subsidiary’s ability to distribute cash to us will limit our ability to obtain and
service any additional debt at the holding company level. In addition, our subsidiary is subject to restrictions under
the Senior Credit Facility against incurring additional indebtedness.

For the year ended December 25, 2005, the weighted average interest rate for the loans under the Senior
Credit Facility was 6.7%. As of December 25, 2003, the blended rate for loans outstanding under the Senior Credit
Facility was 7.1%.

As of December 25, 2005, $6.0 million was outstanding on the Term Loan and $18.0 million was
outstanding under the Revolver. As of December 25, 2005, an additional $20.4 million was immediately avatlable
for borrowing under the Revolver.

Capital expenditures were $3.2 million for the year ended December 25, 2005 and were $2.9 million for the
prior year. The expenditures primarily relate to the upgrade or replacement of various computer systems including
hardware, and purchased and internally developed software. We expect a similar rate and type of capital
expenditures on a going forward basis.

Because we rely on cash flow from operations as a source of liquidity, we are subject to the risk thata
decrease in the demand for our staffing services could have an adverse impact on our liquidity. Decreased demand
for our staffing services could result from an inability to attract qualified healthcare professionals, fluctuations in
patient occupancy at our hospital and healthcare facility clients and changes in state and federal regulations relating
to our business.

We believe that our current cash balances, together with borrowing capacity under the Senior Credit
Facility and other available sources of liquidity, will be sufficient for us to meet our current and future financial
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obligations, as well as to provide us with funds for working capital, anticipated capital expenditures and other needs
for at least the next twelve months. No assurance can be given, however, that this will be the case. In the longer
term, we may require additional equity and debt financing to meet our working capital needs, or to fund our
acquisition activities, if any. There can be no assurance that additional financing will be available when required or,
if available, will be available on satisfactory terms.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a current or future
effect on our financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations,
liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources that is material to our investors.

Contractual Obligations

The following table reflects our significant contractual obligations and other commitments as of December
25, 2005 (in thousands):

Pavments due by period

Less than 2-3 4-5 After
Total 1 year years years 5 vears
Long-term debt obligations...........cc.cccovvrvvrnecne $ 23,991 $ - $23,991 $ - $ -
Operating 1eases........covevrevevriivenrenrecereeeneeane 17,182 4,518 5,170 3,128 4,366
Capital lease obligations.........ccccoevvcrrironnenenee 1.019 317 413 289 -
TOtAL..cviciericecee e et $42.192 § 4835 §$ 29,574 $ 3417 $ 4.366

Critical Accounting Policies

In response to the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) Release Number 33-8040 “Cautionary
Advice Regarding Disclosure About Critical Accounting Policies” and SEC Release Number 33-8056,
“Commission Statement about Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations,” we have identified the following critical accounting policies that affect the more significant judgments
and estimates used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements. The preparation of the consolidated
financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires that
we make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses,
and related disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities. On an on-going basis, we will evaluate our estimates,
including those related to asset impairment, accruals for self-insurance and compensation and related benefits,
allowance for doubtful accounts, and contingencies and litigation. These estimates are based on the information that
is currently available to us and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Actual results could vary from those estimates under different assumptions or conditions. For a
summary of all our significant accounting policies, including the critical accounting policies discussed below, see
Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

We believe that the following critical accounting policies affect the more significant judgments and
estimates used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements:

e We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of our
customers to make required payments, which results in a provision for bad debt expense. The adequacy of
this allowance is determined by continually evaluating customer receivables, considering the customers’
financial condition, credit history and current economic conditions. If the financial condition of our
customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
allowances would be required.
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e  We have recorded goodwill and other intangibles resulting from our acquisitions through December 25,
2005. Through December 30, 2001, goodwill and other intangibles were amortized on a straight-line basis
over their lives of 6 to 20 years. Pursuant to the provisions of SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets, which we adopted in 2002, goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have an indefinite
life are no longer amortized. During the year ended December 25, 2005, we reevaluated our reporting units
and determined that each branch location represented a reporting unit, as opposed to viewing the entire
company as one reporting unit previously. We performed an analysis whereby the historical goodwill was
allocated or “pushed down” to each reporting unit. In accordance with SFAS No. 142, we performed our
annual review for impairment during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005 by performing a fair value analysis of
each reporting unit. The fair value analysis was completed with the assistance of outside valuation
professionals. Based on that analysis, no impairment was noted at any individual reporting unit.
Accordingly, there was no financial impact in 2005 relating to the change in the reporting units for
goodwill impairment testing.

We will continue to perform a reporting unit level fair value analysis impairment test during the fourth
quarter of each year. Should impairment indicators be present, including branches not achieving their
expected operating results, additional analysis will be performed to determine the extent of any impairment
and the associated charge will be recorded to the statement of operations. Should we decide to exit a
market and close one or more of our reporting units, the associated goodwill will be written off with a
charge to the statement of operations. Although it does not affect our cash flow, an impairment charge to
earnings has the effect of decreasing our earnings or increasing our losses, as the case may be. If we are
required to record an impairment charge in the future, it could have an adverse impact on results of
operations.

Subsequent to year end, we decided to close certain per diem nurse branches. As a result, during the first
quarter of 2006, we will take a charge of approximately $3.0 million to write down the associated impaired
goodwill.

e  We maintain an accrual for our health, workers compensation and professional liability that are either self-
insured or partially self-insured and are classified in accounts payable and accrued expenses. The adequacy
of these accruals is determined by periodically evaluating our historical experience and trends related to
health, workers compensation, and professional liability claims and payments, based on company-specific
actuarial computations and industry experience and trends. If such information indicates that the accruals
are overstated or understated, we will adjust the assumptions utilized in the methodologies and reduce or
provide for additional accruals as appropriate.

e  We are subject to various claims and legal actions in the ordinary course of our business. Some of these
matters include professional liability and employee-related matters. Hospital and healthcare facility clients
may also become subject to claims, governmental inquiries and investigations and legal actions to which
we may become a party relating to services provided by our professionals. From time to time, and
depending upon the particular facts and circumstances, we may be subject to indemnification obligations
under our contracts with hospital and healthcare facility clients relating to these matters. Although we are
currently not aware of any such pending or threatened litigation that we believe is reasonably likely to have
a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations, if we become aware of such
claims against us, we will evaluate the probability of an adverse outcome and provide accruals for such
contingencies as necessary.

Caution Concerning Forward-Looking Statements

The SEC encourages companies to disclose forward-looking information so that investors can better
understand a company’s future prospects and make informed investment decisions. This document contains such
“forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995,
particularly statements anticipating future growth in revenues, operating income and cash flow. Statements that are
predictive in nature, that depend upon or refer to future events or conditions or that include words such as “expects,”

“anticipates,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,” “estimates,” and similar expressions are forward-looking statements.

EARTS
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These statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause our actual results
and performance to be materially different from any future results or performance expressed or implied by these
forward-looking statements. These factors include the following:

e  Qur ability to attract and retain qualified nurses and other healthcare personnel;

o  The overall level of demand for services provided by temporary nurses;

e  Qur ability to enter into contracts with hospital and healthcare facility clients on terms attractive to us;

e The willingness of hospital and healthcare facility clients to utilize temporary healthcare staffing services;

e  The general level of patient occupancy at hospital and healthcare facility clients;

e  The functioning of our information systems;

o  The effect of existing or future government regulation and federal and state legislative and enforcement
initiatives on our business;

¢ OQur clients’ ability to pay for services;

e  Qur ability to successfully implement our acquisition and integration strategies;
o The effect of liabilities and other claims asserted against us;

e  The effect of competition in the markets we serve; and

¢ OQur ability to carry out our business strategy.

Although we believe that these statements are based upon reasonable assumptions, we cannot guarantee
future resuits. Given these uncertainties, the forward-looking statements discussed herein might not occur.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Interest Rate Risk

Our exposure to interest rate risk arises principally from the variable rates associated with our credit
facility. On December 25, 2005, we had borrowings of $24.0 million under our credit facility that were subject to
variable rates, with a blended rate of 7.1%. As of December 25, 2005, an adverse change of 1.0% in the interest rate
of all such borrowings outstanding would have caused us to incur an increase in interest expense of approximately
$0.2 million on an annual basis.

Foreign Currency Risk

We have no foreign currency risk as we have no revenue outside the United States and all of our revenues
are in U.S. dollars.

Inflation

We do not believe that inflation has had a material effect on our results of operations in recent years and
periods. There can be no assurance, however, that we will not be adversely affected by inflation in the future.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The information required to be presented by this item is presented commencing on page F-1 of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

We have had no disagreements with our independent registered public accounting firm on any matter of
accounting principles or practices or financial statement disclosure.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The term "disclosure controls and procedures” (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 13d-15(e) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act")) refers to the controls and other procedures of a
company that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by a company in the reports that it
files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within required time
periods. Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer,
evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this
annual report (the "Evaluation Date"). Based on that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer have concluded that, as of the Evaluation Date, such controls and procedures were effective.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, which appears on page F-2 of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K, is incorporated by reference herein.

Changes in Internal Controls

The term "internal control over financial reporting” (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the
Exchange Act) refers to the process of a company that is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer, evaluated our internal control over financial reporting and concluded that no changes in
internal control over financial reporting occurred during the quarter ended December 25, 2005 that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

None
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PART III.

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

Information regarding our directors and executive officers is included in our Proxy Statement for the 2006
Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the captions “Board Nominees Proposal-Directors and Executive Officers”,
“—Nominees for Class II Directors—Term Expiring 2009”, “—Class I Directors-Term Expiring 2008, “—Class 111
Directors—Term Expiring 20077, “—Non-Director Executive Officers”, “—Board of Directors and Committees”, “—
Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act” and “—Code of Business Conduct and Ethics” and is

incorporated herein by reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Information regarding executive compensation is included in our Proxy Statement for the 2006 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders under the captions “Board Nominees Proposal—Board of Directors and Committees”,
“Director Compensation,” “—Executive Compensation”, “—Employment Agreements”, and “—Compensation

Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation” and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

Information regarding security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management and related
stockholder matters is included in our Proxy Statement for the 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the
caption “Board Nominees Proposal—Principal Stockholders” and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Information regarding certain relationships and related transactions is included in our Proxy Statement for
the 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the caption “Board Nominees Proposal—Certain Transactions” and
is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

Information regarding principal accounting fees and services is included in our Proxy Statement for the
2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the caption “Independent Public Accountants™” and is incorporated
herein by reference.
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PART IV.

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K

The following documents are filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

1.

Financial Statements

The information required to be presented by this item is presented commencing on page F-1 of
this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Financial Statement Schedules

The information required to be presented by this item is presented commencing on page S-1 of
this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Exhibits:

See the Exhibit Index on page 33 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Medical Staffing Network Holdings, Inc.
By:
/s/ Robert J. Adamson

Robert J. Adamson
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and Director

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed by the
following persons in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s/ Robert J. Adamson Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer March 3, 2006
Robert J. Adamson and Director (Principal Executive Officer)

{s/ N. Larry McPherson Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial March 3, 2006
N. Larry McPherson Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ Joel Ackerman Director March 3, 2006

Joel Ackerman

/s/ Anne Boykin Director March 3, 2006
Anne Boykin
/s/ C. Daryl Hollis Director March 3, 2006

C. Daryl Hollis

/s/ Philip Incarnati Director March 3, 2006
Philip Incarnati

/s/ Edward J. Robinson Director March 3, 2006
Edward J. Robinson

/s/ David J. Wenstrup Director ) March 3, 2006
David J. Wenstrup

/s/ David Wester Director March 3, 2006
David Wester
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Exhibit No.

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description

2.1

22

2.3

24

3.1

32

4.1

42

10.1

10.2+

10.3+

10.4+

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated August 20, 2001, among Warburg Pincus Private Equity VI,
L.P., MSN Acquisition Corp., Medical Staffing Network Holdings, Inc. and certain stockholders
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1,
dated February 8, 2002 (Registration Number 333-82438)).

First Amendment to Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated October 26, 2001, among Warburg Pincus
Private Equity VIII, L.P. and Medical Staffing Network Holdings, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 2.2 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated February 8, 2002
(Registration Number 333-82438)).

Asset Purchase Agreement, dated October 31, 2002, among Clinical Resource Services, Inc., Health
Search International, Inc., Cheryl Rhodes, Stacey Birmbach and Medical Staffing Network, Inc.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated
November 22, 2002 (File No. 001-31299)).

Escrow Agreement, dated as of October 31, 2002, among Medical Staffing Network, Inc., Clinical
Resource Services, Inc. and Silver, Friedman & Taft, LLP (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2
to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated November 22, 2002 (File No. 001-31299)).

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Medical Staffing Network Holdings, Inc.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended December 29, 2002 (File No. 001-31299)).

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Medical Staffing Network Holdings, Inc. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 29, 2002 (File No. 001-31299)).

Registration Rights Agreement, dated October 26, 2001, among the investors listed on Schedule I to
such Agreement and Medical Staffing Network Holdings, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
4.1 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated February 8, 2002 (Registration
Number 333-82438)).

Form of Stock Certificate (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1, dated April 1, 2002 (Registration Number 333-82438)).

Stockholders Agreement, dated as of October 26, 2001, by and among Medical Staffing Network
Holdings, Inc. and the investors named therein (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated February 8, 2002 (Registration Number 333-
82438)).

Employment Agreement among Medical Staffing Network, Inc., Medical Staffing Network Holdings,
Inc. and Robert Adamson, dated August 20, 2001 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated February 8, 2002 (Registration Number 333-
82438)).

First Amendment to the Medical Staffing Network, Inc. Amended and Restated Employment
Agreement among Medical Staffing Network, Inc., Medical Staffing Network Holdings, Inc. and
Robert Adamson, dated October 26, 2001 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated February 8, 2002 (Registration Number 333-
82438)).

Second Amendment to the Medical Staffing Network, Inc. Amended and Restated Employment
Agreement among Medical Staffing Network, Inc., Medical Staffing Network Holdings, Inc. and
Robert Adamson, dated October 26, 2001 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated February &, 2002 (Registration Number 333-
82438)).
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Exhibit No.

Description

10.5+

10.6+

10.7+

10.8+

10.9+

10.10+

10.11+

10.12+

10.13+

10.14+

10.15+

10.16+

Employment Agreement among Medical Staffing Network, Inc., Medical Staffing Network Holdings,
Inc. and Kevin Little, dated August 20, 2001 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated February §, 2002 (Registration Number 333-
82438)).

First Amendment to the Medical Staffing Network, Inc. Amended and Restated Employment
Agreement among Medical Staffing Network, Inc., Medical Staffing Network Holdings, Inc. and
Kevin Little, dated October 26, 2001 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated February 8, 2002 (Registration Number 333-82438)).

Second Amendment to the Medical Staffing Network, Inc. Amended and Restated Employment
Agreement among Medical Staffing Network, Inc., Medical Staffing Network Holdings, Inc. and
Kevin Little, dated October 26, 2001 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated February 8, 2002 (Registration Number 333-82438)).

Employment Agreement among Medical Staffing Network, Inc., Medical Staffing Network Holdings,
Inc. and Patricia Donohoe, dated August 20, 2001 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated February 8, 2002 (Registration Number 333-
82438)).

First Amendment to the Medical Staffing Network, Inc. Amended and Restated Employment
Agreement among Medical Staffing Network, Inc., Medical Staffing Network Holdings, Inc. and
Patricia Donohoe, dated October 26, 2001 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated February 8, 2002 (Registration Number 333-
82438)).

Employment Agreement among Medical Staffing Network, Inc., Medical Staffing Network Holdings,
Inc. and Linda Duval, dated August 20, 2001 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated February 8, 2002 (Registration Number 333-
82438)).

First Amendment to the Medical Staffing Network, Inc. Amended and Restated Employment
Agreement among Medical Staffing Network, Inc., Medical Staffing Network Holdings, Inc. and
Linda Duval, dated October 26, 2001 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated February §, 2002 (Registration Number 333-82438)).

Termination Agreement among Medical Staffing Network, Inc., Medical Staffing Network Holdings,
Inc. and Linda Duval, dated January 4, 2003 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form 10-K, dated March 5, 2004 (Registration Number 001-
31299)).

Employment Agreement among Medical Staffing Network, Inc., Medical Staffing Network Holdings,
Inc. and Jeffrey Jacobsen, dated November 1, 1999 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated February &, 2002 (Registration Number 333-
82438)).

Employment Agreement, among Medical Staffing Network, Inc., Medical Staffing Network
Holdings, Inc. and Gregory K. Guckes, dated June 9, 2003 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1
to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form 10-Q, dated May 6, 2004 (Registration Number
001-31299)).

Separation Agreement, among Medical Staffing Network, Inc., Medical Staffing Network Holdings,
Inc. and Gregory K. Guckes, dated June 7, 2004 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form 10-Q, dated August 5, 2004 (Registration Number 001-
31299)).

Employment Agreement, among Medical Staffing Network, Inc., Medical Staffing Network
Holdings, Inc. and N. Larry McPherson, dated August 2, 2004 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form 10-Q, dated November 4, 2004 (Registration
Number 001-31299)).
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Description

10.17+

10.18+

10.19+

10.20+

10.21+

10.22+

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

Employment Agreement, among Medical Staffing Network, Inc., Medical Staffing Network
Holdings, Inc. and Gary Peck, dated March 10, 2005 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to
the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 26, 2004 (File No.
001-31299)).

General Waiver and Release of Claims, among Medical Staffing Network, Inc., Medical Staffing
Network Holdings, Inc. and Gary Peck, dated January 17, 2006 (filed herewith).

Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan of Medical Staffing Network Holdings, Inc., dated
February 27, 2001 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to the Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1, dated February 8, 2002 (Registration Number 333-82438)).

Amendment No. 1 to the Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan of Medical Staffing Network
Holdings, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement
on Form S$-1, dated February 8, 2002 (Registration Number 333-82438)).

2001 Stock Incentive Plan of Medical Staffing Network Holdings, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated February 8, 2002
(Registration Number 333-82438)).

Form of Amended and Restated Executive Incentive Stock Ownership Plan of Medical Staffing
Network Holdings, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to the Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1, dated February 8, 2002 (Registration Number 333-82438)).

Credit Agreement, dated as of October 26, 2001, among Medical Staffing Network, Inc., Medical
Staffing Holdings, LLC, LaSalle Bank, National Association, as syndication agent, Bank of America,
N.A., as administrative agent, and General Electric Capital Corporation, Barclays Bank, PLC, and
Antares Capital Corporation, as co-documentation agents (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17
to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated February 8, 2002 (Registration Number
333-82438)).

Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of April 3, 2002, among Medical Staffing Network, Inc.,
Medical Staffing Holdings, LLC, the Subsidiaries of the Borrower identified as “Guarantors” on the
signature pages thereto, the Lenders identified on the signature pages thereto and Bank of America,
N.A., as Administrative Agent (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the Registrant’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 29, 2002 (File No. 001-31299)).

Second Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of July 5, 2002, among Medical Staffing Network,
Inc., Medical Staffing Holdings, LLC, the Subsidiaries of the Borrower identified as “Guarantors” on
the signature pages thereto, the Lenders identified on the signature pages thereto and Bank of
America, N.A., as Administrative Agent (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 29, 2002 (File No.
001-31299)).

Third Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of October 3, 2002, among Medical Staffing
Network, Inc., Medical Staffing Holdings, LLC, the Subsidiaries of the Borrower identified as
“Guarantors” on the signature pages thereto, the Lenders identified on the signature pages thereto and
Bank of America, N.A., as Administrative Agent (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to the
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 29, 2002 (File No.
001-31299)).

Fourth Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of December 23, 2002, among Medical Staffing
Network, Inc., Medical Staffing Holdings, LLC, the Subsidiaries of the Borrower identified as
“Guarantors” on the signature pages thereto, the Lenders identified on the signature pages thereto and
Bank of America, N.A., as Administrative Agent (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to the
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 29, 2002 (File No.
001-31299)).
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10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

10.36

10.37

10.38

Description

Fifth Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of March 21, 2003, among Medical Staffing
Network, Inc., Medical Staffing Holdings, LLC, the Subsidiaries of the Borrower identified as
“Guarantors” on the signature pages thereto, the Lenders identified on the signature pages thereto and
Bank of America, N.A., as Administrative Agent (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 30, 2003 (File No.
001-31299)).

Security Agreement, dated as of October 26, 2001, among Medical Staffing Network, Inc., Medical
Staffing Holdings, LLC and Bank of America, N.A., as collateral agent (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.18 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated February 8, 2002
(Registration Number 333-82438)).

Credit Agreement, dated December 22, 2003, among Medical Staffing Network, Inc., the other Credit
Parties identified on the signature pages thereto, the Lenders identified on the signature pages thereto,
General Electric Capital Corporation, as Administrative Agent, and LaSalle Bank, National
Association, as syndication agent (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to the Registrant’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 28, 2003 (File No. 001-31299)).

First Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated June 25, 2004, among Medical Staffing Network, Inc.,
the other Credit Parties identified on the signature pages thereto, General Electric Capital
Corporation, LaSalle Bank National Association and Special Situations Investing Group, Inc.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarterly period ended June 27, 2004 (File No. 001-31299)).

Second Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated February 24, 2005, among Medical Staffing
Network, Inc., the other Credit Parties identified on the signature pages thereto, General Electric
Capital Corporation, LaSalle Bank National Association and Special Situations Investing Group, Inc.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated
February 28, 2005 (File No. 001-31299)).

Credit Party Pledge Agreement, dated as of October 26, 2001, among Medical Staffing Network, Inc.,
Medical Staffing Holdings, LLC and Bank of America, N.A., as collateral agent (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated February 8,
2002 (Registration Number 333-82438)).

Holdings Pledge Agreement, dated as of October 26, 2001, among Medical Staffing Network
Holdings, Inc. and Bank of America, N.A., as collateral agent (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.20 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated February 8, 2002 (Registration
Number 333-82438)).

Lease Agreement, dated November 22, 1999, between Fairfax Boca ‘92 LP and Medical Staffing
Network, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement
on Form S-1, dated February 8, 2002 (Registration Number 333-82438)).

Lease Amendment No. 1, dated July 31, 2001, between Fairfax Boca ‘92 LP and Medical Staffing
Network, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement
on Form S-1, dated February 8, 2002 (Registration Number 333-82438)).

Lease Agreement, dated January 24, 2005, between Cantera H-6 LL.C and Medical Staffing Network,
Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated
January 24, 2005 (File No. 001-31299)).

License and Master Agreement, dated February 8, 2002, between Premier Computer Systems, Inc.
and Medical Staffing Network Holdings, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated March 15, 2002 (Registration Number 333-
§2438)).
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Exhibit No.

Description

10.39

21.1

23.1
311

31.2

321

322

Blanket Purchase Agreement, dated as of September 6, 2005, between Medical Staffing Network
Holdings, Inc. and the United States Department of Health and Human Services (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period
ended September 25, 2005 (File No. 001-31299)).

List of Subsidiaries (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21.1 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 28, 2003 (File No. 001-31299)).

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm (filed herewith).

Certification of Robert J. Adamson, Chief Executive Officer of Medical Staffing Network Holdings,
Inc., as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith).
Certification of N, Larry McPherson, Chief Financial Officer of Medical Staffing Network Holdings,
Inc., as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith).

Certification of Robert J. Adamson, Chief Executive Officer of Medical Staffing Network Holdings,
Inc., pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002 (filed herewith).

Certification of N. Larry McPherson, Chief Financial Officer of Medical Staffing Network Holdings,
Inc., pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002 (filed herewith).

Management contract or compensatory plan.

37




INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MEDICAL STAFFING NETWORK HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Contents

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting...........cooeceiveceinnininininne oo
Reports of Independent Registered Public AcCounting FirTi.......cccovviicriinninoincn st
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 25, 2005 and December 26, 2004..........cccoooeivveiiceiconiiceiveve e
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 25, 2005, December 26, 2004 and
DECemMDBET 28, 2003 ... ..ottt ettt et e e e e oA et e h e ene et e s s e ta et e e e et s st s ereeaneereeneraeetren
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity for the years ended December 25, 2003,
December 26, 2004 and December 28, 2003 .........u.ooeoeiiee oottt ettt ettt rte et era e
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 25, 2005, December 26, 2004 and
DECEmbBET 28, 2003 ... .. . ittt e e b e ee ettt e s eteett et e etbe b e e eaeeta et e ers e tb e aeereseteerteannenes
Notes to Consolidated FINancial STAtEIMENES. ......c.c.ivirriierriiirieeeriveererete st evees e reseete st e et sssessbesteseeresessesserssssssssessassane

F-1




MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, and
for performing an assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 25,
2005. Internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. The Company's system of internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (i1) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (iii) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the Company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Management performed an assessment of the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial
reporting as of December 25, 2005 based upon criteria in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Based on our assessment,
management determined that the Company's internal control over financial reporting was effective as of
December 25, 2005 based on the criteria in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by COSO.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate. :

Management's assessment of the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of
December 25, 2005 has been audited by Emst & Young LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as
stated in their report which is included herein.

Dated: February 24, 2006

/s/ Robert J. Adamson /s/ N. Larry McPherson
Robert J. Adamson N. Larry McPherson
Chairman and Chief Financial Officer

Chief Executive Officer




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Medical Staffing Network Holdings, Inc.

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting, that Medical Staffing Network Holdings, Inc. maintained effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 25, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the
COSO criteria). Medical Staffing Network Holdings, Inc.’s management is responsible for maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the
effectiveness of the company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s
assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Medical Staffing Network Holdings, Inc. maintained effective
internal control over financial reporting as of December 25, 2005, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on
the COSO criteria. Also, in our opinion, Medical Staffing Network Holdings, Inc. maintained, in all material
respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 25, 2005, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the consolidated financial statements of Medical Staffing Network Holdings, Inc. as of December 25, 2005
and December 26, 2004 and for each of the three years in the period ended December 25, 2005 and our report dated
February 24, 2006 expressed an ungualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP
Certified Public Accountants

Fort Lauderdale, Florida
February 24, 2006
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Medical Staffing Network Holdings, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Medical Staffing Network Holdings, Inc. and
Subsidiaries as of December 25, 2005 and December 26, 2004, and the related consolidated statements of
operations, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December
25,2005. These financial statements are the responsibility of Medical Staffing Network Holdings, Inc.’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of Medical Staffing Network Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries at December 25, 2005 and December
26, 2004, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 25, 2005, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the effectiveness of Medical Staffing Network Holdings, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 25, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 24, 2006,
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Emst & Young LLP
Certified Public Accountants

Fort Lauderdale, Florida
February 24, 2006



MEDICAL STAFFING NETWORK HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

December 25,  December 26,

2005 2004
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash eGUIVALENES ......covriiiiereiee ettt irse et essse s eeraress s nnes $ 42 $ 345
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $772 and
$1,064 at December 25, 2005 and December 26, 2004, respectively .................. 55,863 57,478
Prepaid EXPENSES ... .coveuriiriceiec ettt ettt ettt 1,966 6,406
Other CUITENE ASSELS ... .vivvivirieeieiiiie et etes e see ettt esassere et e snesasaasessesesenersenses 4,576 4,758
TOLAl CUITENE ASSELS 1vvevveeeereieierieeiere et seeresseeeeessesserae s e e e seese et sesreetesbaebesbebesbessaernernises 62,447 68,987
Fumiture and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $21,698 and
$18,650 at December 25, 2005 and December 26, 2004, respectively .........cocoe..e. 8,427 8,481
Goodwill, net of accumulated amortization of $8,545 at both
December 25, 2005 and December 26, 2004 ..o e 130,589 129,474
Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization of $2,394 and $1,663 at
December 25, 2005 and December 26, 2004, respectively .....ccoveveevvvieneeceivenenns 2,253 2,438
OthET SSELS .vvivivieviieti ittt s sttt e et te st et s tes s sbese s eaeerassene st esesbeseasetsstesessecresrannans 1,200 1,523
TOTAL ASSELS ...vvvrerreireeieriireirecrret s st easees e e b s s et ens e er e sbesbesaesaeabenn e sb e s st et et et et e re s etsereatne $ 204916 $ 210,903
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued eXPenses. .........cocovvirerenieeinnee e $ 14,099 $ 12,072
Accrued payroll and related liabilities........occceccvriienicinieinniccee e 6,157 6,597
Current portion of capital lease Obligations ..........ccoceeeveiviivivrinerrnnieenereeree e 317 385
Total current HabIlitieS .........cveveiriiiiriieieeceere ettt er e b e resr e reanns 20,573 19,054
LONG-term dEbt.......oveiiieiiiiirirene ettt et et e bbb 23,991 31,760
Deferred INCOMIE tAXES ....vcveveereeeerisiiese e eeteeeeassseressae st s esesase s eseteses bt ebasese e ebessasntesesnas 9,790 9,808
Capital lease obligations, net of current portion.........c..coeveeeeenrcennrieeneeesecrenes 702 33
Other TADIITES .....cooiieeeiceiciicicee ettt aa et ettt bess et eses e esenasees 612 222
TOtAl HADILIIES .....oviivvireeieccei ettt vttt en e ees s be bt s eseaebesseae s ennns 55,668 60,877
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 75,000 authorized: 30,237 and 30,231 issued
and outstanding at December 25, 2005 and December 26, 2004, respectively..... 302 302
Additional paid-in CAPIAL ....c.cocvireieiiireicci ettt s 284,432 284,411
ACCUMUIAEd dETICTE....iiveiieee ettt ettt et et a b e sresseseestrseesnrene (135.486) (134.687)
Total stockholders’ EQUILY ....c.vcvreiireierecerincetrrre ettt e 149.248 150.026
Total liabilities and stockholders’ €QUILY .....covvveirerrcriei et e $ 204916 $ 210,903

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




MEDICAL STAFFING NETWORK HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Years Ended
December 25, December 26, December 28,
2005 2004 2003

SEIVICE TEVEIUES ......covevievr ettt en st $ 402,507 $ 417,058 $ 512,985
Cost of services 1endered ........c.ooveiveeeeiieeiiiiee e 314,341 327.075 398,224
GIOSS PIOTIt ... ettt ettt st nes 88,166 89,983 114,761
Operating expenses:

Selling, general and adminiStrative ............cooverveeinvenerensesesieerons 81,087 82,067 90,519

Depreciation and amortiZation ............cvcevereeneeeirneiesssesseenseienas 5,259 6,316 6,773

ONET oottt ettt 512 - -

Income from OPErations .............cccceeecereriieereinreeeiee e 1,308 1,600 17,469
Loss on early extinguishment of debt ..., - - 3,555
INterest EXPenSe, NEL ...ocvviiiiieiiceset et ettt et et 2.767 3.541 4.685

Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes .... (1,459) (1,941) 9,229
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes..........ocovvvrviveererererenenne. {660) _(61%5) 3,708

Income (loss) from continuing OPerations..............oceceerereerverrrnnan. (799) (1,326) 5,521
Loss from discontinued operations, net of taxes ...........ccecoveevieenen. - - (506)
Nt INCOME (10SS)...ev.iriiieeeieiereiiet sttt $ (799 $_(1,320) § 5015
Income (loss) per share — basic:

Income (loss) from continuing OPerations ........c...ce.cveveeverereennnan. $ (0.03) $ (0.04) $ 0.18

Discontinued operations, net 0f taXes .........coeccveveeeeeeeiveinierenceieeas — - (0.0

Basic net income (10sS) per Share..........co.eceeereereieiereieereeccerere oo, $ (0.03) $ (0.04) h) 0.17
Income (loss) per share — diluted:

Income (loss) from continuing Operations.............c..ceceevevrerevennens $ (0.03) $ (0.04) $ 0.18

Discontinued operations, net 0f taXes ..........coovveeieereieneriins e, — — (0.02)

Diluted net income (10ss) per share.............ocevveverievenceieieniinena, $ (0,03 $ (0.04) g 0.16
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding:

BASIC ...ttt et 30233 30,228 30,190

DIIEA ... s 30,233 30,228 30,807

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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MEDICAL STAFFING NETWORK HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(in thousands)

Stockholders’ Equity
Accumulated Retained
Additional Other Earnings
Common Stock Paid-in Comprehensive (Accumulated
Shares Par Capital Loss Deficit) Total
Balance at December 29, 2002................ 30,119 $ 301 $283,848 $ (105) $(138,376)  $145,668
NEt iNCOME..uccvvoiivieeceee e, - - - ~ 5,015 5,015
Unrealized income on derivative, net
OF TAXES 1.vcveviievieiesi s n et - - - 105 - 105
Comprehensive INCOME .....o..oorveerrricnnnn, - - - - - 5,120
Exercise of stock options.........ccececeennenn, 90 1 498 - - 499
Balance at December 28, 2003................ 30,209 302 284,346 - (133,361) 151,287
Net loss and comprehensive loss............. - - - - (1,326) (1,326)
Exercise of stock options..........cccovceeennen. 22 - 65 - - 65
Balance at December 26, 2004................ 30,231 302 284,411 - (134,687) 150,026
Net loss and comprehensive loss............. - - - - (799) (799)
Exercise of stock options.......c...cccoceennnen, 6 — 21 - - 21
Balance at December 25, 2005................ 30237 3§ 302 $284,432 h) = $(135,486) $149,248
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MEDICAL STAFFING NETWORK HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Operating activities

Net income (J0SS) ..eovovieeeieeirericeeeee e
Loss from discontinued operations, net of taxes......

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net
cash provided by operating activities:

Loss on early extinguishment of debt..................
Depreciation and amortization..............ccoecevvenerenes
Amortization of debt issuance cost............cevvennene.
Deferred income taxes ........cooovevevveceieveveeereenene,
Provision for doubtful accounts..........cccoeeeeeenenn.

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts 1eceivable ... ..o,
Prepaid expenses and other current assets.........
Other @SSELS ...ouvveeeiiiriceeere e e
Accounts payable and accrued expenses...........
Accrued payroll and related liabilities...............
Other Habilities........cvovecriveereierieeeree e,

Cash provided by continuing operations................
Cash used in discontinued operations............c.........

Cash provided by operating activities ............cocee...

Investing activities

Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acquired......
Purchases of furniture and equipment, net ..............
Capitalized internally developed software costs.....

Net cash used in investing activities.........c.covevevenene

Financing activities

Net repayments under revolving credit facility.......
Proceeds from borrowings on term loan..................
Principal payments on term loan .............ccccooovevvnee
Proceeds from exercise of stock options................

Principal payments under capital lease obligations

Net cash used in financing activities .........c.ooeeveee.

Net decrease in Cash.......ocecerevccnincneieieceen,
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year......

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ................

Continued on next page.

(in thousands)

E-8

Years Ended
December 25, December 26, December 28,
2005 2004 2003

..... $ (799) $  (1,326) $ 5,015
..... - - 506
..... - - 3,555
..... 5,259 6,316 6,773
..... 656 694 1,094
..... (515) 2,568 4,618
..... 486 1,213 3,226
..... 17 55 91
..... 1,673 9,911 22,396
..... 4,714 2,511 (5,440)
..... (171) (132) (564)
..... 1,856 5,024 (1,458)
..... (440) (19) (2,787)
..... 198 (96) 194
..... 12,934 26,719 37,219
..... — - (500)
..... 12,934 26,719 36,719
..... (1,887) (24) (10,803)
..... (1,863) (1,179) (3,516)
..... (1,332) (1,753) (1.113)
..... (5,082) (2,956) (15,432)
..... (1,768) (18,218) (15,575)
..... - - 12,000
..... (6,000) (5,000) (20,877)
..... 21 65 499
..... _(408) (1.090) (1.104)
..... (8.155) (24.243) (25,057)
..... $ (303) $ (430) $  (3,770)
..... 345 825 4,593
..... § 42 3 345 $ 825




MEDICAL STAFFING NETWORK HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - (Continued)

Supplemental disclosure of noncash investing
and financing activities:

Noncash payment Of iterest «.......cooeeevueveerrreanns
Purchases of equipment through capital leases...

Vendor supplied equipment...........ocococervnirinnne

Noncash payment of additional consideration

related t0 an aCqUISIION .....c.ovveeorrireincrricicnceea

Noncash receipt of note receivable and interest

TECEIVADIE ..o

Noncash payoff of extinguished credit facility ...

Additional consideration to be paid relating to

ACGUISTEIONS ...ttt ee e e

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow
information:

Interest paid.......ccccooernircrniccre e,

Income taxes paid (refunded), net .........coceveeenee.

(in thousands)

Years Ended
December 25, December 26, December 28,
2005 2004 2003

...... h) 2,019 3 2,703 $ -~
...... 3 1,009 $ — $ 185
------ $—_2_61 L——T ‘L—_“—.——*—
...... h) = 3 4,161 3 —
...... s ~ $ (4161 ) —
...... S - 3 ~ § 56,123
....... $ - h 3 113
...... 3 23 3 23 $ 3982
...... $_ (3.925) $ (4,833 g 3,335

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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MEDICAL STAFFING NETWORK HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Organization

Medical Staffing Network Holdings, Inc. (the Company), a Delaware corporation, is a provider of
temporary staffing services in the United States. The Company's per diem healthcare staffing assignments place
professionals, predominately nurses, at hospitals and other healthcare facilities to solve temporary staffing needs.
The Company also provides staffing of allied health professionals such as specialized radiology and diagnostic
imaging specialists and clinical laboratory technicians. During 2004, the Company expanded its services to provide
temporary general staffing. The Company’s per diem general staffing assignments, which represent less than 2.0%
of 2005 revenue, place individuals in a variety of areas including clerical, janitorial and food services. The
Company's temporary healthcare staffing client base includes for-profit and non-profit hospitals, teaching hospitals,
and regional healthcare providers. The Company provides its services through a network of over 100 branch
locations around the United States and considers each branch location to be a reporting unit and therefore an
operating segment. The Company has aggregated all branch operating results under one reportable segment as each
branch has similar economic characteristics. Each branch provides the same type of service, temporary staffing, and
utilizes similar distribution methods, common systems, databases, procedures, processes and similar methods of
identifying and serving their customers. Temporary staffing services represent 100% of the Company's consolidated
revenue for years ended December 25, 2005, December 26, 2004 and December 28, 2003.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Stock-Based Compensation

In December 2004, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (SFAS) No. 123 (revised
2004), Share-Based Payment, (SFAS No. 123(R)) which is a revision of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation (SFAS No. 123). Statement 123(R) supersedes Accounting Principles Board (APB}) Opinion No. 25,
Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, (APB No. 25). SFAS No. 123(R) requires all share-based payments to
employees, including grants of employee stock options, to be recognized in the income statement based on their fair
values. Pro forma disclosure is no longer an alternative. Additionally, SFAS No. 123(R) amends the presentation of
the statement of cash flows and requires additional annual disclosures. SFAS No. 123(R) is effective for public
companies beginning with the first interim period that begins after June 15, 2005. In April 2003, the Securities and
Exchange Commission adopted a new rule that postponed the effective date for SFAS No. 123(R) to the fiscal year
beginning after June 15, 2005. The Company adopted SFAS No. 123(R) on December 26, 2005, using the modified
prospective method. As permitted by SFAS No. 123, the Company currently accounts for share-based payments to
employees using the intrinsic value method in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles of APB
No. 25, and, as such, generally recognizes no compensation cost for employee stock options, as options granted
under the Company’s plans have an exercise price equal to or greater than the fair value of the underlying common
stock on the date of grant.

On December 1, 2005, the Company’s Compensation Committee accelerated the vesting of all of our
unvested stock options awarded to employees under the Company’s 2001 Stock Incentive Plan (the 2001 Plan) (with
the exception of three of the Company’s officers, who only had their options that were scheduled to vest in 2006
accelerated). As a result of the acceleration, options to acquire approximately 374,000 shares of the Company’s
common stock (representing approximately 18% of the total outstanding options), which otherwise would have
vested periodically over the next 48 months, became immediately exercisable. Approximately 50% of the
accelerated options would have vested in 2006. If the Company had already adopted the fair value method, the
acceleration of the options would have increased compensation expense by approximately $1.0 million in 2005 and
would have decreased compensation expense approximately $0.5 million in 2006, $0.3 million in 2007 and $0.1
million in 2008.

The Compensation Committee’s decision to accelerate the vesting of these options was in response to the
issuance of SFAS No. 123(R). By accelerating the vesting of these options, the Company has minimized the
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potential compensation expense that will be required to be recognized in future periods under SFAS No. 123(R).
However, the impact of adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), which is not expected to be material, cannot be predicted at
this time because it will depend on levels of share-based payments granted in the future. Had the Company adopted
SFAS No. 123(R) in prior periods, its impact would have approximated the impact of SFAS No. 123 as described in
the disclosure of pro forma net income (loss) and earnings (loss) per share in Stock-Based Compensation.

Changes in Accounting Principles

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections, which replaces
APB No. 20, Accounting Changes, and SFAS No. 3, Reporting Accounting Changes in Interim Financial
Statements. This Statement requires retrospective application to prior periods’ financial statements of changes in
accounting principles, unless it is impracticable to determine the period specific effects or cumulative effect of the
change. When it is impracticable to determine the period specific effects of an accounting change on one or more
individual prior periods presented, this Statement requires that the new accounting principle be applied to the
balances of assets and liabilities at the beginning of the earliest period for which retrospective application is
practicable and a corresponding adjustment is to be made to the opening balance of retained earnings for that period.
When it is impracticable to determine the cumulative effect of applying a change in accounting principle to all prior
periods, it requires that the new accounting principle be applied as if it were adopted prospectively from the earliest
date practicable. This Statement defines “retrospective application” as the application of a different accounting
principle to prior accounting periods as if that principle had always been used or as the adjustment of previously
issued financial statements to reflect a change in the reporting entity. It also redefines “restatement” as the revising
of previously issued financial statements to reflect the correction of an error. This Statement also requires that a
change in depreciation, amortization, or depletion method for long-lived, nonfinancial assets be accounted for as a
change in accounting estimate effected by a change in accounting principle. It is effective for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2005. The impact of adoption of this statement is not expected to be significant.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated
financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The most significant
areas requiring the use of management estimates relate to the determination of allowance for doubtful accounts, the
determination of required accruals for health, workers compensation and professional liability that are partially self
funded and the determination of estimates used in the impairment analysis of goodwiil and other intangible assets.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company, its wholly-owned subsidiaries,
Medical Staffing Holdings, LLC (MSN LLC), Medical Staffing Network, Inc. (MSN Inc.), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of MSN LLC, MSN-Illinois Holdings, Inc. (MSN-Ill), a wholly-owned subsidiary of MSN Inc., Medical
Staffing Network of [llinois, LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of MSN-I1l, and Medical Staffing Network Assets,
LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of MSN-III. All material intercompany transactions and balances have been
eliminated in consolidation.

The Company’s fiscal year consists of 52/53 weeks ending on the last Sunday in December in each year.
Each of the years ended December 25, 2005, December 26, 2004 and December 28, 2003 consisted of 52 weeks.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of reporting cash flows, the Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with
an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Deposits in banks may exceed the amount of
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insurance provided on such deposits. The Company performs reviews of the creditworthiness of its depository
banks. The Company has not historically experienced any losses on deposits.

Accounts Receivable and Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk as defined by
SFAS No. 105, Disclosure of Information About Financial Instruments With Off-Balance-Sheet Risk and Financial
Instruments with Concentrations of Credit Risk, consist principally of accounts receivable. Concentrations of credit
risk with respect to trade accounts receivable are limited due to the large number of customers and their dispersion
across a number of geographic areas. However, essentially all trade receivables are concentrated in the hospital and
healthcare sectors in the United States and, accordingly, the Company is exposed to their respective business and
economic variables. Although the Company does not currently foresee a concentrated credit risk associated with
these receivables, repayment is dependent upon the financial stability of these industry sectors. The Company does
not generally require collateral. The allowance for doubtful accounts represents the Company’s estimate for
uncollectible receivables based on a review of specific accounts and the Company’s historical collection experience.
The Company writes off specific accounts based on an ongoing review of collectibility as well as management’s
past experience with the customers.

Fixed Assets

Furniture and equipment are stated at cost and depreciated using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives, ranging generally from three to seven years. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over
the lives of the related leases or their estimated useful lives, whichever is shorter.

Certain leases for office equipment have been capitalized in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No.
13, Accounting for Leases, and are amortized over the lives of the related leases.

Certain software development costs for internally developed software have been capitalized in accordance
with the provisions of Statement of Position 98-1, Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or
Obtained for Internal Use. These capitalized costs include purchased software for internal use, consulting services
and costs for personnel associated with programming, coding and testing such software during the application
development stage. Amortization of capitalized software costs begins when the software is placed into service and is
included in depreciation expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. Software development
costs are being amortized using the straight-line method over their estimated useful life of three years.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired. Identifiable
intangible assets are being amortized using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives ranging from 3
to 7.5 years. Pursuant to the provisions of SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (SFAS No. 142),
the Company does not amortize goodwill or intangible assets deemed to have an indefinite useful life. Per SFAS No.
142, impairment for goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have an indefinite life exists if the net book value of
the goodwill or intangible asset exceeds its fair value. During the year ended December 25, 2005, the Company
reevaluated its reporting units and determined that each branch location represented a reporting unit, as opposed to
viewing the entire company as one reporting unit previously. The Company performed an analysis whereby the
historical goodwill was allocated or “pushed down” to each reporting unit. In accordance with SFAS No. 142, the
Company performed its annual review for impairment during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005 by performing a fair
value analysis of each reporting unit. The fair value analysis was completed with the assistance of outside valuation
professionals. Based on that analysis, no impairment was noted at any individual reporting unit. Accordingly, there
was no financial impact in 2005 relating to the change in the reporting units for goodwill impairment testing.

The Company will continue to perform a reporting unit level fair value analysis impairment test during the

fourth quarter of each year. Should impairment indicators be present, including branches not achieving their
expected results, additional analysis will be performed to determine the extent of any impairment and the associated
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charge will be recorded to the statement of operations. Should the Company decide to exit a market and close one
or more of its reporting units, the associated goodwill will be written off with a charge to the statement of operations
(see Note 18).

The Company accounts for long-lived assets with definite useful lives pursuant to SFAS No. 144,
Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets (SFAS No. 144), which requires impairment losses
to be recorded on long-lived assets used in operations when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of intangible assets with a definite useful life is
determined by comparison of the carrying amount of the asset to net future cash flows expected to be generated from
the asset. Management reviews long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate the assets may be impaired. An impairment loss is recorded when the net book value of the assets exceeds
the fair value, as measured by projected undiscounted future cash flows. No impairment charges were recorded in
any of the years ended December 25, 2005, December 26, 2004 and December 28, 2003.

The Company’s identifiable intangible assets are comprised of noncompete agreements, contractor
databases, trademarks, trade names and customer relationships (see Note 5). The Company completed its review for
annual impairment indicators for all intangible assets during the fourth quarter of 2005 and determined that there
were no impairment indicators present.

Reserves for Claims

Workers’ compensation, healthcare benefits and professional liability are provided under self-insured and
partially self-funded plans. The Company records its estimate of the ultimate cost of, and reserves for, workers’
compensation and professional liability based on actuarial computations and the Company’s loss history as well as
industry statistics. Furthermore, in determining its reserves, the Company includes reserves for estimated claims
incurred but not reported. The ultimate cost of workers’ compensation, healthcare benefits and professional liability
will depend on actual costs incurred to settle the claims and may differ from the amounts reserved by the Company
for those claims.

Letters of Credit

As of December 23, 2005, the Company had an outstanding $0.5 million letter of credit, as security on its
Warrenville, Illinois, office lease. This letter of credit expires on May 6, 2006.

Debt Issuance Costs

Deferred costs related to the issuance of debt are being amortized using the effective interest method over
the terms of the respective debt. Debt issuance costs of $1.8 million, less accumulated amortization of $1.2 million
at December 25, 2005, and $1.7 million, less accumulated amortization of $0.7 million at December 26, 2004, are
recorded in other assets in the consolidated balance sheets.
Revenue Recognition

Revenue from services consists of temporary staffing revenues. Revenues are recognized when services are

rendered. Reimbursable expenses, including those related to travel and out-of-pocket expenses, are recorded as
service revenues with an equal amount in cost of services rendered.
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Stock-Based Compensation

The Company grants stock options for a fixed number of common shares to employees and directors from
time to time. The Company accounts for employee stock options using the intrinsic value method as prescribed by
APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and, accordingly, currently recognizes no
compensation expense for stock option grants when the exercise price of the options equals, or is greater than, the
market value of the underlying stock on the date of grant. Accordingly, the Company did not recognize any
compensation cost during each of the years ended December 25, 2005, December 26, 2004 and December 28, 2003
for stock-based employee compensation awards. The Company currently follows the accounting and disclosure
provisions of SFAS No. 123 as amended by SFAS No. 148, for stock options issued to employees and directors.

The effect of applying the fair value method prescribed by SFAS No. 123, as amended by SFAS No. 148,
to the Company’s options would have the Company recording the following net income (loss) and pro forma net
income (loss) per share amounts (in thousands, except per share information):

Years Ended
December 25, December 26, December 28,
2005 2004 2003

Net income (loss) as reported ...........coccerunnne. $ (799 § (1,326) $ 5,015
Fair value method of stock based

compensation, net of tax ......c.coeceevrcrennnn, (1,156) (965) (1,257
Pro forma net income (10SS).........ccoceevevvrcerenane. § (1,955) $ (2.291) $ 3758
As reported basic income (loss) from

CONtINUING OPETAtIONS ......vvee e, $  (0.03) $ (004 $ 018
Discontinued operations, net of taxes............... - — (0.01)
As reported basic income (loss) per share........ s (0.03) 0.04 $ 017
As reported diluted income (loss) from

CONtINUING OPErationS.......coeeeeeeureemrecrirriverns S (0.03) $  (0.04) 5 018
Discontinued operations, net of taxes............... - - (0.02)
As reported diluted income (loss) per share..... $ (003 0.04 $ 016
Pro forma basic income (loss) from

CONtiNUING OPErations.......ccocovevereuiveerensrennnn. $  (0.06) $ (0.08) $ 014
Discontinued operations, net of taxes............... — — (0.02)
Pro forma basic income (loss) per share........... 8§ (0.06) $ (0.08) $_ 012
Pro forma diluted income (loss) from '

continuing OPerations.............coeeeveererecrecrennns $ (0.06) $ (0.08) $ 014
Discontinued operations, net of taxes............... - - (0.02)
Pro forma diluted income (loss) per share........ $  (0.06) 0.08 $ 012
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Pro forma information regarding net income or loss is required by SFAS No. 123 and has been determined
as if the Company had accounted for its employee stock options under the fair value method of that statement. The
fair value of options granted was estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with
the following assumptions:

Years Ended
December 25, December 26, December 28,
2005 2004 2003
Expected life......ocoovvveeeeiiiciicee e 4-8 3-8 3-8
Risk-free interest rate.........ovvevverveeereeeerennene 3.91% -4.66% 4.25% -4.44% 3.25%-4.19%
VOlattity . .oooveeeiriieics e 60% 63% 70%
Dividend yield......ccoovvvinenninnireiine 0% 0% 0%

Advertising

The Company’s advertising expense consists primarily of print media, online advertising, direct mail
marketing and promotional material. Advertising costs that are not considered direct response are expensed as
incurred and were approximately $3.6 million, $3.4 million and $4.8 million for the years ended December 25,
2005, December 26, 2004 and December 28, 2003, respectively.

Income (Loss) Per Share

In accordance with the requirements of SFAS No. 128, Earnings Per Share (SFAS No. 128), basic earnings
per share is computed by dividing net income or loss by the weighted average number of shares outstanding and
diluted earnings per share reflects the dilutive effects of stock options and other common stock equivalents (as
calculated utilizing the treasury stock or reverse treasury stock method, as appropriate). Shares of common stock
that are issuable upon the exercise of options have been excluded from the 2005 and 2004 per share calculation
because their effect would have been anti-dilutive. See Note 13 for the calculation of income (loss) per share.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes (SFAS No.
109). Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined based upon differences between financial reporting
and tax bases of assets and liabilities and are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect
when the differences are expected to reverse.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company is exposed to market risks arising from changes in interest rates. To protect against such
risks, the Company had one derivative financial instrument, an interest rate swap agreement, which is more fully
disclosed in Note 16.

SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities (SFAS No. 133), requires
companies to recognize all of their derivative instruments as either assets or liabilities in the statement of financial
position at fair value. The accounting for changes in the fair value (i.e., gains or losses) of a derivative instrument
depends on whether it has been designated and qualifies as part of a hedging relationship and on the type of hedging
relationship. For those derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as hedging instruments, a company
must designate the hedging instrument, based upon the exposure being hedged, as either a fair value hedge, a cash
flow hedge or a hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation. As the Company’s derivative instrument was
designated and qualified as a cash flow hedge (i.e., hedging the exposure to variability in expected future cash flows
that was attributable to a particular risk), the effective portion of the gain or loss on the derivative instrument was
reported as a component of other comprehensive income and reclassified into earnings in the same period or periods
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during which the hedged transaction affects earnings. The remaining gain or loss on the derivative instrument in
excess of the cumulative change in the present value of future cash flows of the hedged item, if any, was recognized
in current earnings during the period of change.

As of December 25, 2005 and December 26, 2004, the Company had no derivative instruments. As of
December 28, 2003, the Company marked to market the fair value of the interest rate swap agreement and recorded
a loss of approximately $0.1 million. Additionally, in connection with the December 2003 refinancing of the credit
facility (see Note 9), the Company wrote off the remaining balance of approximately $0.1 million.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

SFAS No. 130, Comprehensive Income (SFAS No. 130), requires that an enterprise (a) classify items of
other comprehensive income by their nature in the financial statements, and (b) display the accumulated balance of
other comprehensive income separately from retained earnings and additional paid-in capital in the equity section of
the balance sheet. The items of other comprehensive income (loss) that are typically required to be displayed are
foreign currency items, minimum pension liability adjustments, unrealized gains and losses on certain investments
in debt and equity securities and the effective portion of certain derivative instruments. There are no components of
comprehensive income (loss) other than the Company’s net income (loss) and unrealized income on the derivative
instrument for the years ended December 25, 2005, December 26, 2004 and December 28, 2003.

The following table sets forth the computation of comprehensive income (loss) for the periods indicated (in
thousands):

Years Ended
December 25, December 26,  December 28,
2008 2004 2003

Net income (10S8) ..vvvoveieeiceiiicee e $ (799 $ (1,326) $ 5,015
Other comprehensive income:

Income on derivative, net of taxes............cccoveee. ~ — 105
Total comprehensive income (10SS) ......coeoecreerrennnss, 3 (799) 1,32 5,12

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2004 and 2003 consolidated financial statements to conform to
the 2005 presentation.

2. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The Company discontinued its physician staffing services in the second quarter of 2003. Pursuant to the
provisions of SFAS No. 144, results of operations are to be classified as discontinued when the disposal of the
“component of an entity” has occurred or it has met the “held for sale” criteria. As such, the total is shown separately in
the line item, loss from discontinued operations, net of taxes, in the Company’s consolidated statement of operations
for the year ended December 28, 2003. There were no revenues or cost of services rendered from physician staffing
services during the years ended December 25, 2005 and December 26, 2004. There were no net assets of the
discontinued operations at December 25, 2005 and December 26, 2004.
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Service revenues, cost of services, gross loss and loss from discontinued operations, net of taxes, for the year
ended December 28, 2003 are as follows (in thousands):

SEIVICE TEVETIUES .....ovveeiireeicreiereecenr st ecee e et sessieeens § 495
Cost of service revenues....... et —e et e bene, (1.095)
GTOSS LOSS ..uiiviiereeeteeeee et e e et e e e ss et sa et e e esaees ’ 600
Loss before benefit from inCome taxes ........ocovviveveeiverienann, $§ (845
Benefit from inCome taXeS.........covveevivrreerererericreerneeeeeverens 339
Loss from discontinued operations, net of taxes................... 506

3. RESTRUCTURING CHARGE

As announced on June 16, 2003, the Company completed its plan to restructure its operations by closing 29
branches. The restructuring was necessary to adjust the infrastructure the Company had put in place to support multiple
growth initiatives and was in response to the current contraction in demand for its services. Approximately 130 branch
staff and corporate employees were terminated as part of the restructuring. As a result, in the second quarter of 2003,
the Company recorded a pre-tax charge, of approximately $0.8 million, relating to employee severance costs, branch
closing costs and lease termination costs. The restructuring charge is included in selling, general and administrative
expenses in the Company’s consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 28, 2003. No amounts
have been or are expected to be incurred or paid in subsequent quarters relating to this restructuring. A breakdown of
the restructuring charge is as follows (in thousands):

Lease terMINAtION COSTS ....covvivireeriirietctiieressetsee i sesvesrsceesaeseresesasesensebeens e eresnsene $ 390
OffICe ClOSINEG COSES ...ttt ettt i e s b s 164
Employee termination COSS........ocomeieriicarnienerenee e e ssinanee 158
IMISCEIIANEGOUS ......eviirriieii i resiei et e se et et et essbe et sbebeseeaeseberasassasenseeebesanseeasesane 51
TOLAL. ettt et se s et b bt b s $ 763

4. ACQUISITIONS

On November 30, 2005, the Company acquired certain assets of Winnertech, a New Jersey based
temporary healthcare staffing company, for approximately $0.6 million in cash, of which approximately $0.1 million
was held in escrow, and the assumption of approximately $0.3 million in liabilities. Approximately $0.7 million and
$0.1 million of the purchase price was allocated to goodwill and a non-compete agreement (three-year life),
respectively. The primary reason for the acquisition was to expand service offerings within the temporary healthcare
industry. The acquisition was accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations, and,
accordingly, the results of operations have been included in the consolidated statement of operations beginning from
December 1, 2005, the date when the Company assumed control.

On March 31, 2005, the Company acquired certain assets of Quality Medical Professionals (QMP), a
California based temporary allied healthcare staffing company, for approximately $1.0 million in cash, of which
approximately $0.1 million was held in escrow, and the potential for additional consideration contingent upon QMP
achieving certain financial results in the future. Approximately $0.4 million, $0.2 million, $0.1 million and $0.1
million of the purchase price was allocated to goodwill, customer contracts (two-year life), contractor databases
(five-year life) and a non-compete agreement (six-year life), respectively. The primary reason for the acquisition
was to expand service offerings within the temporary healthcare industry. The acquisition was accounted for in
accordance with SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations, and, accordingly, the results of operations have been
included in the consolidated statement of operations beginning from April 1, 2005, the date when the Company
assumed control.
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In March 2003, the Company acquired certain assets of Saber-Salisbury Group (SSG), a temporary
healthcare staffing company, for approximately $10.8 million in cash, of which approximately $2.2 million was held
in escrow and the potential for additional consideration contingent upon SSG achieving certain financial results.
Approximately $10.4 million of the purchase price was allocated to goodwill. The primary reason for the acquisition
was to expand service offerings within the temporary healthcare industry. The acquisition was accounted for in
accordance with SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations, and, accordingly, the results of operations have been
included in the consolidated statements of operations beginning from March 1, 2003, the date when the Company
assumed substantial control over SSG.

The Company neither paid, nor accrued, any additional consideration related to acquisitions during 2005.
In 2004, the Company paid approximately $0.1 million of additional consideration related to prior year acquisitions,
and also had additional consideration pursuant to the TNI acquisition as the earnout amount due under the purchase
agreement was set off against the $4.0 million note receivable and associated interest receivable of $0.2 million. In
2003, the Company made no payments of additional consideration related to prior year acquisitions but the
Company accrued $0.1 million for additional consideration to be paid.

The following unaudited pro forma financial information reflects the results of operations for the years
ended December 25, 2005, December 26, 2004 and December 28, 2003, as if the acquisitions had occurred at the
beginning of the respective periods presented. The pro forma financial information, in the schedule below, does not
purport to be indicative of the results of operations that would have occurred had the transactions taken place at the
beginning of the periods presented or of future results of operations (in thousands, except per share information):

Years Ended
December 25, December 26, December 28,
2005 2004 2003
SEIVICE TEVEIIUES ......evcveveeeeieveere e v e e, $ 405,612 $ 417,058 $ 515892
Income from operations..........cceeveveeevecviereienceecrenis 1,447 1,600 17,754
Income (loss) from continuing operations ............... (1,320) (1,941) 5,690
Income (loss) from discontinued operations,

NEL OF tAXES .ovovvvviveiirrirre s - - (506)
Net income (0SS} ......oveeeirieeceneinrireeee v (712) (1,326) 5,184
Income (loss) per share — basic:

Income (loss) from continuing operations ............ $ (0.02) $ (0.04) $ 0.19

Discontinued operations, net of taxes........o.oc.oeeen. - - (0.02)

Basic net income (loss) per share ... $ _ (0.02) g (0.04) $ 0.17
Income (loss) per share — diluted:

Income (loss) from continuing operations ............ $ (0.02) $ (0.04) $ 0.18

Discontinued operations, net of taxes.................... - - (0.01)

Diluted net income (loss) per share..........ccoovveen. 3 (0.02) h) (0.04) $ 0.17

5. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

As discussed in Note 1, pursuant to the provisions of SFAS No. 142, the Company does not amortize
goodwill or intangible assets deemed to have an indefinite useful life. Identifiable intangibles with definite lives are
amortized. SFAS No. 142 requires that goodwill be separately disclosed from other intangible assets on the balance
sheet and tested for impairment on a periodic basis, or more frequently if certain indicators arise.

Goodwill increased by $1.1 million from $129.5 million at December 26, 2004 to $130.6 million at

December 25, 2005. This increase is associated with the goodwill recorded during 2005 relating to the QMP and
Winnertech acquisitions.
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The following reflects the changes to goodwill for the years ended December 25, 2005 and December 26,
2004 (in thousands):

Years Ended
December 25, December 26
2005 2004
Balance at beginning of year ..........ccoooeveveiiiciinnnn, $ 129474 $ 125,028
Goodwill acquired during year ..........coccoeeveeneieecen, 1,115 4,446
Impairment 10SSES ......ccoovvirririeeriiierete e - -
Goodwill written off related to sale of business unit ... - -
Balance atend of year............ccoecvnniiincncni $_ 130,589 $ 129474

As of December 25, 2005 and December 26, 2004, the Company’s intangible assets, other than goodwill,
and related accumulated amortization, were as follows (in thousands):

December 25, 2005 December 26, 2004
Gross Net Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount

Intangible assets subject to amortization:
Non-compete agreements (3 - 7.5 years).... $ 3,531 $  (1,903) $ 1,628 $ 3,348 $  (1,408) $ 1,940

Contractor database (5 years).........c.ccceuee 742 (366) 376 612 (224) 388
Customer relationships (3 years).........coco.e.. 266 (125) 141 39 (3D 8
Total intangibles subject to amortization.... 4,539 (2,394) 2,145 3,999 (1,663) 2,336
Intangible assets not subject to

amortization:

Trademarks, trade names ...........co..coecveveienne 108 - 108 102 - 102
Total intangible assets ....ccccvvvrvinnivniiinns $ 4,647 5 (23%) § 2253 $ 4,101 3 (1,663) $ 2,438

During 2004, the Company reevaluated the initial recording of certain of its goodwill and intangible assets.
As a result of this reevaluation, the Company reduced the gross value of noncompete agreements by approximately
$1.0 million and increased contractor database by $0.6 million, trademarks, trade names by $0.1 million, and
customer relationships by less than $0.1 million. The cumulative net effect of these adjustments resulted in an
increase to goodwill of approximately $0.3 million and a pre-tax decrease in amortization expense of approximately
$0.2 million. Such adjustments were recorded in the fourth quarter of 2004 as they were not material to any period
effected.

During 2005, the Company acquired intangible assets totaling $0.5 million as part of the QMP and
Winnertech acquisitions (see Note 4). During 2004, the Company did not purchase any intangible assets. The
Company recorded amortization expense on intangible assets of $0.7 million, $0.5 million and $0.7 million for the
years ended December 25, 2005, December 26, 2004 and December 28, 2003, respectively.

The estimated annual amortization expense for intangible assets for the next five fiscal years as of
December 25, 2005 is as follows (in thousands):

D006 v eeeeeeereeee oo sreeeeeseseee e ereere oot $ 797

2007 coeeeeeeeeee e seeeeeeeress e eeseeses e et et 698

1. o OO 359

1L OO 224

710 L1 OO OO 65
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6. FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT
Furniture and equipment consist of the following (in thousands):

December 25, December 26,

2005 2004
Leasehold improvements. .............coevovrevereresonecenenscvensenennns $ 1485 $ 1,287
Furniture and equipment .........cc.cccoovvveieecrnerenieecnnees e 15,475 14,015
Internally developed software ........ccooovveiceveceecee 9,627 8,296
Equipment held under capital leases.......ocovveveernereinennn. 3,537 3.533
TOtal .o e e 30,124 27,131
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization.................. (21.697) (18,650)
Fumniture and equipment, net ..o e $_ 8427 S 8481

Depreciation expense from furniture and equipment was $4.5 million, $5.8 million and $6.1 million for
each of the years ended December 25, 2005, December 26, 2004 and December 28, 2003, respectively.

Accumulated amortization on assets held under capital leases was $2.5 million and $3.2 million at
December 25, 2005 and December 26, 2004, respectively.

7. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses consist of the following (in thousands):

December 25, December 26,

2005 2004
Insurance related accrued eXpenses .......coovovveveccrerereecerecnennn. $ 9,041 $ 72835
Accounts payable........oooini e 1,330 1,694
OLHET ...cvoieer s e et 3.728 2,543
TOAL .o s $ 14,099 $ 12,072
8. INCOME TAXES

As of December 25, 2005, December 26, 2004 and December 28, 2003, the Company had temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and such amounts
measured by the tax laws.

The provision for (benefit from) income taxes is as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended
December 25, December 26, December 28,
2005 2004 2003
Current INCOME taXES.......vovveevvieeareeeeeveerieaeena
Federal ..o, $ (548 $ (2,865) § (819
STALE vt 403 (318) (91)
Total current iINCOME tAXES w.vvvvrvveiererererreininns (145) (3,183) (910)
Deferred income taxes.......ooevviveevveeriienrenienean. (515) 2,568 4,618
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes ........ $ _ (660) $  (615) $ 3708
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Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows (in thousands):

December 25, December 26,

2005 2004
Current deferred tax assets:
Provision for doubtful acCOUNtS..........cccoovevviveverecerreeeece e, $ 317 § 523
State NOL carryforwards ...c....cocoveiierirriner e ceeeesnee s - 330
ACCTUEd EXPENSES ...t 157 162
INSUTANCE TESEIVES .evviieiiiirrierierieriereereriereernatesnesreeresressessesnessssnessen: 1,236 -
Total current deferred tax aSSets ......ccovevvvevieicereeiirerivecreereenean, $ 1,710 $ 1,015
Current deferred tax liabilities:
Prepaid XPenses .......ccoovecrcrrmieninenecienie ettt (198) -
Total current deferred tax assets, NEt ..........cocccvvccrrerrernernnrcennneon, $ 1512 $ 1,015
Noncurrent deferred tax assets:
Federal NOL carryforwards .........c.cvoeervriieiienensonnesseeeneennn, $ 1,728 $ -
State NOL carryforwards .......coceeoceninienireenee s e, 1,169 -
ACCIUEH EXPEIISES ...euveveriecerereesreiriererinrsee et e et anssesaenebnsens 242 154
Total noncurrent deferred tax assets ..........cocevereiviececeeircreeenn, 3.139 154
Noncurrent deferred tax liabilities:
Goodwill and intangible aSSets ......ccoeveirrvieeiec e (12,653) (9,325)
Furniture and equipmMent ..........coevererminrcnninernse e (276) (637)
Total noncurrent deferred tax Habilities.......covcvreoveerierrereenerinnn, (12.929) (9.962)
Total noncurrent deferred tax liabilities, net........cccocoerccrnnnnen. $ (9.790) $_(9.808)

Current deferred tax assets are included in other current assets in the Company’s consolidated balance
sheets. SFAS No. 109 requires a valuation allowance to reduce the deferred tax assets reported if, based on the
weight of the evidence, it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax asset will not be
realized. After consideration of all the evidence, both positive and negative, management has determined that no
valuation allowance is required as of December 25, 2005 and December 26, 2004. As of December 25, 2005, the
Company had a Federal net operating loss carryforward of $5.1 million, which expires in 2020, and state net
operating loss carryforwards of $29.9 million, the majority of which expire after 2019.

The reconciliation of income tax computed at the U.S. federal statutory rate to income tax expense is as
follows:

Years Ended
December 25, December 26, December 28,

2005 2004 2003
Tax at U.S. statutory rate.....cc.ocevvveerienerrenennens 34.0% 34.0% 34.0%
State taxes, net of federal benefit............cocv.... 3.6 3.6 3.6
Other state tax items .........ccvevveevereriveererveeneneens 17.1 - -
Non-deductible Hems .......cccoeieivirivenrereennes (12.4) (10.7) 2.9
Other, NEL .eviriecciee ettt ere st senean 2.9 4.8 (0.3)
Effective income tax rat€........cocvevveeevverervennes 45.2% 31.7% 40.2%
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9. LONG-TERM DEBT

On October 26, 2001, the Company entered into a $120.0 million senior credit facility. The facility
consisted of a $40.0 million term note due in October 2006, a $60.0 million term note due in October 2007 and a
$20.0 million revolving credit facility due to expire in October 2006. In connection with the Company’s initial
public offering completed on April 23, 2002 the Company repaid $93.4 million of borrowings that were outstanding
under the facility and repaid $62.9 million that was outstanding under its previously existing senior unsecured notes.

On July 3, 2002, the Company amended the facility by replacing the previous two term notes with a single
$25.0 million term note. All amounts outstanding under the previous term notes were repaid at that time. On
October 3, 2002, the Company amended the facility by replacing the $25.0 million term note with a $65.0 million
term note and reducing the borrowing capacity of its revolving credit facility from $20.0 million to $15.0 million.
On March 21, 2003, the Company amended the facility by replacing the $65.0 million term note with a $77.0
million term note and a new term note facility that allowed for borrowings of up to $13.0 million.

On December 22, 2003, the Company entered into a new senior credit facility (the Senior Credit Facility)
which replaced the previous facility. The Senior Credit Facility provided a $65.0 million revolving credit facility
(the Revolver) which expires in December 2006 and a $17.0 million term loan (the Term Loan) which was due in
December 2005.

On June 25, 2004, the Company amended the Senior Credit Facility to reduce the Revolver capacity from
$65.0 million to $60.0 million. The amendment also favorably modified certain financial covenants while increasing
the applicable margin on the Revolver by 0.5% and on the Term Loan by 1.0%. In conjunction with the amendment,
on July 1, 2004, the Company repaid $5.0 million of borrowings under the Term Loan. The $5.0 million can not be
re-borrowed under the terms of the Term Loan.

On February 24, 2005, the Company amended the terms of the Senior Credit Facility whereby the Term
Loan was reduced to $6.0 million, the applicable margin for the Term Loan was reduced to 4.5%, the maturity of the
Term Loan was extended to December 2006 and certain financial covenants were amended. The $6.0 million Term
Loan repayment was funded with borrowings under the Revolver.

Effective September 24, 2005 and December 25, 2003, the Company amended the terms of the Senior
Credit Facility whereby certain financial covenants were favorably amended and the expiration date was extended to
January 2, 2007.

The amount that can be borrowed at any given time under the Revolver is based on a formula that takes
into account, among other things, eligible accounts receivable and an availability reserve, which can result in
borrowing availability of less than the full capacity of the Revolver. The Revolver bears interest at either prime rate
or LIBOR plus an applicable margin (6.6% at December 25, 2005) with interest payable monthly or as interest rate
contracts expire. The Term Loan bears interest at LIBOR plus an applicable margin (8.5% at December 25, 2005)
with interest payable as interest rate contracts expire. Unused capacity under the Revolver bears interest at 0.5% and
is payable monthly. The Senior Credit Facility is secured by substantially all of the Company’s assets and contains
certain covenants that, among other things, limit the payment of dividends, restrict additional indebtedness and
obligations, and require maintenance of certain financial ratios. As of December 25, 2005, the Company was in
compliance with all covenants.

As the borrower under the Senior Credit Facility, the Company’s subsidiary, Medical Staffing Network,
Inc., may only pay dividends or make other distributions to the Company in the amount of $500,000 in any fiscal
year to pay the Company’s operating expenses. This limitation on the Company’s subsidiary’s ability to distribute
cash to the Company will limit its ability to obtain and service any additional debt at the holding company level. In
addition, the Company’s subsidiary is subject to restrictions under the Senior Credit Facility against incurring
additional indebtedness.
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As of December 25, 2005, $6.0 million was outstanding on the Term Loan and $18.0 million was
outstanding under the Revolver. As of December 25, 2005, an additional $20.4 million was immediately available
for borrowing under the Revolver.

A summary of long-term debt as of December 25, 2005 and December 26, 2004 is as follows (in
thousands):

December 25, December 26,

2005 2004
Senior fACIIILY .c.ccvevviieeiccriie e, $ 17,991 $ 19,760
T L0AN. ... ettt 6,000 12,000

23,991 31,760
LeSS CUITENt POTTION....c.evvvrurierireririresirercri oo seiseenenebeecenenenan — -

$ 23991 $ 31,760

Scheduled maturities of long-term debt as of December 25, 2005 are as follows (in thousands):

10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The Company has a voluntary defined contribution 401(k) profit-sharing plan covering all eligible
employees as defined in the plan documents. The Plan allows for its participants to defer up to 15% of annual salary
up to the adjusted IRS maximum each year. In addition, the plan provides for matching 50% of the participants’
contributions, up to a maximum of 7% of the participants’ salary contributed and provides for a discretionary
matching contribution, which would be allocated to each employee based on the employee’s annual pay divided by
the total annual pay of all participants eligible to receive such contribution. The Company’s matching contribution
was approximately $1.0 million, $1.2 million and $1.4 million for the years ended December 25, 2005,

December 26, 2004 and December 28, 2003, respectively.

In 2003, the Company established a Deferred Compensation Plan covering senior management who have
executive-level decision making responsibilities. The plan allows for its participants to defer up to 100% of annual
salary up to the adjusted 401(k) maximum that individuals can defer in the Company’s existing 401(k) plan (see
above). In addition, the Company will match 50% of the participant’s contributions, up to a maximum of 7% of the
participant’s salary contributed, a match that is consistent with the Company’s existing 401(k) plan. Participants
may also contribute 100% of any excess contributions, excess company match and potential earnings from the prior
year’s 401(k) discrimination testing refunds. The plan is a nonqualified funded deferred compensation plan and all
participants’ contributions are held in trust in the Company’s name. As such, the Company recorded the fair value of
the trust of $0.6 million and $0.4 million, in the other current assets and accounts payable and accrued expenses
within the consolidated balance sheets for the years ended December 25, 2005 and December 26, 2004, respectively.
The Company’s matching contribution was $0.1 million and $0.1 million for the years ended December 25, 2005
and December 26, 2004.

11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Capital Leases
The Company leases equipment under several lease agreements, which are accounted for as capital leases.

The assets and liabilities under capital leases are recorded at the lower of the net present value of the minimum lease
payments or the fair value of the asset. The assets are amortized over the related lease term.
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Future minimum lease payments under capital leases are as follows as of December 25, 2005 (in
thousands):

2006 ..o retieerierensaeaasseesaesessesasesasasesarasasaaesaesbesssssRasss e RS a8 e R s SRR bR Rt e R st s es ek bebesesebase § 378
2007 ettt sa e e aa et e e s eabassatseAeeateAaeAeaRe b esseAbeAsebsereaEenE et e ases eRaseneranbessaraan 352
2008 ettt et bt et af e efRaf e8RS b b as b aS £ £ s Re S ae bR S s Re sk bananan 348
2009 and therEaIer ........ccooiiicieiieiictr et e aas s 58
1,136
Less amount repreSenting INEETESE ........v.ocvieririinririnseeeeeeesseeerasessssesseeceseeeesaaseesseens (117)
Less amount classified 85 CUITENL ............ccovo oo et 317
702

Operating Leases

The Company has entered into noncancelable operating lease agreements for the rental of space and
equipment. Certain of these leases include options to renew as well as rent escalation clauses. Future minimum lease
payments as of December 25, 2005 associated with these agreements are as follows (in thousands):

2006 1ot r st ettt ettt e et s teneareebeereirenene $ 4,518
2007 ittt ettt et ae et es sttt eae e eb e bt et aneris 3,064
OO ... e ettt ettt a e n ettt s et ateereeaenenn 2,106
2009 et et ettt b et b et et et et e ettt erea et b et eteseas 1,604
2010 it ettt ettt bttt et et er et bes et ean et b r bt enanes 1,524
TEIEATIET ....ocviceeeei ettt et a ettt et et a et et e s et teateenea 4,366

Total operating lease expense was approximately $5.8 million for each of the years ended December 25,
2005 and December 26, 2004 and $6.3 million for the year ended December 28, 2003.

Litigation

On February 20, 2004, Joseph and Patricia Marrari, and on April 16, 2004, Tommie Williams, filed class
action lawsuits against the Company in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida, on
behalf of themselves and purchasers of the Company’s common stock pursuant to or traceable to the Company’s
initial public offering in April 2002. These lawsuits also named as defendants certain of the Company’s directors
and executive officers (collectively with the Company, the “Defendants”). The complaints allege that certain
disclosures in the Registration Statement/Prospectus filed in connection with the Company’s initial public offering
on April 17, 2002 were materially false and misleading in violation of the Securities Act of 1933 (the “Securities
Act”). The complaints seek compensatory damages as well as costs and attorney fees.

On March 29, 2004, a third class action lawsuit brought on behalf of the same class of the Company’s
stockholders, making claims under the Securities Act similar to those in the lawsuits filed by Plaintiffs Joseph and
Patricia Marrari and Tommie Williams, was commenced by Plaintiff Haddon Zia in the Florida Circuit Court of the
Fifteenth Judicial Circuit in and for Palm Beach County, Florida, Defendants removed this case to the United States
District Court for the Southern District of Florida and Plaintiff moved to remand the case back to the Florida Circuit
Court of the Fifteenth Judicial Circuit, which motion Defendants opposed. On September 16, 2004 the federal
district court entered an order granting Plaintiff’s motion to remand. On January 6, 2005, the state court stayed the
state court proceedings until further order of the court. The Zia complaint seeks rescission or damages as well as
certain equitable relief and costs and attorney fees.

On March 2, 2004, another class action complaint was filed against the Company and certain of its
directors and executive officers in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida by Jerome
Gould, individually and on behalf of a class of the Company's stockholders who purchased stock during the period
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from April 18, 2002 through June 16, 2003. The complaint alleges that certain of the Company’s public disclosures
during the class period were materially false and misleading in violation of Section 10(b) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”), and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder. The complaint seeks compensatory
damages, costs and attorney fees.

On July 2, 2004, the Marrari, Gould, Williams and Zia actions were consolidated, although, as noted above,
the Zia action was subsequently remanded to state court. Plaintiff Thomas Greene was appointed Lead Plaintiff of
the consolidated action and the law firm of Cauley Geller Bowman & Rudman LLP (now known as Lerach Coughlin
Stoia Geller Rudman and Robbins LLP) was appointed Plaintiffs’ Lead Counsel.

On September 1, 2004, Lead Plaintiff filed his consolidated amended class action complaint (the
“Complaint™). The Complaint makes allegations on behalf of a class consisting of purchasers of the Company’s
common stock pursuant to or traceable to the Company’s initial public offering in April 2002, for purposes of the
Securities Act claims, and on behalf of the Company’s stockholders who purchased stock during the period from
April 18, 2002 through June 16, 2003, for purposes of the Exchange Act claims. The Complaint alleges that certain
of the Company’s public disclosures during the ciass period were materially faise and misleading in violation of
Section 11 of the Securities Act and Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act. The Complaint seeks compensatory
damages as well as costs and attorney fees. Defendants have a motion to dismiss the Complaint, which, on
September 27, 2005, was granted in part as to those portions of Plaintiffs” Section 10(b) and 20(a) claims concerning
statements or omissions prior to October 29, 2002, and denied as to the remaining claims. The litigation is now
proceeding as to those portions of the complaint that were not dismissed.

The Company believes that these lawsuits are without merit and it intends to defend itself against them
vigorously. Due to their preliminary status, the Company is unable to predict the outcome of these lawsuits or
reasonably estimate a range of possible loss.

From time to time, the Company is subject to lawsuits and claims that arise out of its operations in the
normal course of business. The Company is a plaintiff or a defendant in various litigation matters in the ordinary
course of business, some of which involve claims for damages that are substantial in amount. The Company believes
that the disposition of any claims that arise out of operations in the normal course of business will not have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

12. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Stockholders’ Agreement

The Company and certain of its stockholders entered into a stockholders agreement conferring certain
rights and restrictions, including among others, restrictions on transfers of shares, rights to acquire shares, and
designation of Board of Director seats. This agreement terminated upon the Company’s initial public offering except
that:

o for aslong as any investor that is a party to the stockholders agreement beneficially owns at least 20% of
the Company’s outstanding shares, the Company is obligated to nominate and use its best efforts to have
two individuals designated by that investor elected to its Board of Directors; and

» foras long as any investor that is a party to the stockholders agreement beneficially owns at least 10% of
the Company’s outstanding shares, the Company is obligated to nominate and use its best efforts to have
one individual designated by that investor elected to its Board of Directors.

Stack Options
The Company has a stock option plan (the Plan), under which 1.2 million shares of common stock are

available for grant. At December 30, 2001, 0.3 million shares were reserved for future issuances under the Plan. The
Plan is designed to serve as an incentive for retaining qualified and competent employees. The Compensation
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Committee of the Board of Directors administers the Plan and is authorized to grant options thereunder to all eligible
employees of the Company, including officers and directors of the Company and consultants. The Plan provides for
the granting of both “incentive stock options” (as defined in Section 422A of the Internal Revenue Code) and
nonqualified stock options. Each option is exercisable after the period or periods specified in the option agreement,
but no option can be exercised after the expiration of ten years and one day from the date of grant.

The 2001 Plan was adopted by the Board on November 14, 2001. Under the terms of the 2001 Plan, the
Company is authorized to grant incentive stock options and nonqualified stock options, make stock awards and
provide the opportunity to purchase stock to employees, directors, officers and consultants of the Company. The
2001 Plan provides for the issuance of a maximum of 2.3 million shares of common stock. On June 17, 2003 the
shareholders of the Company approved an amendment to the 2001 Plan which increased the maximum number of
shares for issuance by 0.5 million, to 2.8 million. The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors
administers the 2001 Plan and is authorized to grant options thereunder to all eligible employees of the Company,
including officers and directors of the Company and consultants. The 2001 Plan provides for the granting of both
“incentive stock options” (as defined in Section 422A of the Internal Revenue Code) and nonqualified stock options.
On December 1, 2005, the Company’s Compensation Committee accelerated the vesting of all unvested stock
options awarded to employees under the 2001 Plan (with the exception of three of the Company’s officers, who only
had their options that were scheduled to vest in 2006 accelerated). As a result of the acceleration, options to acquire
approximately 374,000 shares of the Company’s common stock (representing approximately 18% of the total
outstanding options), which otherwise would have vested periodically over the next 48 months, became immediately
exercisable. Approximately 50% of the accelerated options would have vested in 2006. Still, no option granted
under the 2001 Plan can be exercised after the expiration of ten years and one day from the date of grant.

The Compensation Committee’s decision to accelerate the vesting of these options was in response to the
issuance of SFAS No. 123(R). By accelerating the vesting of these options, the Company has minimized the
potential compensation expense that will be required to be recognized in future periods under SFAS No. 123(R).
However, the impact of adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), which is not expected to be material, cannot be predicted at
this time because it will depend on levels of share-based payments granted in the future. Had the Company adopted
SFAS No. 123(R) in prior periods, its impact would have approximated the impact of SFAS No. 123 as described in
the disclosure of pro forma net income (loss) and earnings (loss) per share in Stock-Based Compensation.
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A summary of the Company’s stock option activity and related information is as follows:

Weighted Average
Shares Exercise Price
Outstanding at December 29, 2002 .........cccocvvevnnnrencnn. 2,098,939 $ 6.84
GIANIEA ..ottt er et eer st en et ereen s 235,788 $ 894
EXEICISE ...o.ovvecevceeeececeeeeee e (90,362) $ 4.00
FOrfeited .......coovovoiieeeetieeee e (272.,304) $§ 721
Qutstanding at December 28, 2003 ........cc.covvvvvivreiiene. 1,972,061 $ 7.16
GIATIEE ..ot se e sasaeees 165,000 $ 7.27
EXEICISEA oonecvrvciierinecie et (21,633) $ 222
FOrfeited .....ovovvviiiioeceeeeeeees et (222.619) $ 10.14
Outstanding at December 26, 2004 .........ccoovvveivinncnne 1,892,809 $ 6.88
GIanted .......ocovieeieiiricee et ere et 326,000 $ 685
EXEICISEd . .cvvvereieiereieriieiee st sacn st st easreinees (5,521) § 219
Forfeited ..o, (150.936) $ 8.07
Outstanding at December 25, 2005 ........o.coooeviverrnnenn, 2,062,332 $§ 6.80
Exercisable at end of year........cocoeverecncncnee. e 1,949,292 $ 678

Weighted Average

Fair Value

Options granted during the year:
Issued at or above MATKet PIiCE.....ivierercerieiraieeente e $ 342

Information about options outstanding as of December 25, 2005 is as follows:

Options Qutstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted

Average Weighted
Range Remaining Weighted Average
of Exercise Contractual Average Exercise

Prices Life (Years) Shares Exercise Price Shares Price
$1.95 to $2.20 4.9 88,448 $ 218 88,448 $ 218
$6.00 to $6.06 6.0 1,407,567 $ 6.06 1,407,567 § 6.06
§7.00 to $10.00 8.9 439,817 § 739 326,777 $ 753
$14.00 to $21.00 6.9 126.500 $ 16.07 126.500 $ 16.07

2,062,332 § 6.80 1,949,292 $ 678
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13. INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE

Years Ended
December 25, December 26,  December 28,
2005 2004 2003

(in thousands, except per share information)

Numerator for diluted income (loss) per share .............c...ccov..e.

$ (799 $ (1,326) § 5015

Denominator:
Denominator for basic income (loss) per share—
weighted-average shares.........ccovvve e, 30,233 30,228 30,190
Effect of dilutive shares:
Employee Stock Options.........cocovieveiviiie e e - — 617

Denominator for diluted income (loss) per share—adjusted
weighted-average shares and assumed conversions .............. 30,233 30,228 30,807

Income (loss) per share — basic:

Income (loss) from continuing Operations ...........cocceceeeueecrncnen. $ (0.03) $ (0.04) 3 0.18
Discontinued operations, net of taxes.......c.cccvcvvveevecrnennoveennens - - (0.01)
Basic net income (loss) per share ...........occocvvvennreicrecenenns S _(0.03) §  (004) h 0.17

Income (loss) per share — diluted:

Income (loss) from continuing OPerations ..........c...cocoveeeeireenrne. $  (0.03) § (0.04) A 0.18
Discontinued operations, net Of taXeS......cvvocerveeriresrercenre e - - (0.02)
Diluted net income (1088) per Share ...........coeccovveereennnnene s S (0.03) $§ (009 $_ 016

For the years ended December 25, 2005 and December 26, 2004, approximately 2.1 million and 1.9 million
options, respectively, were excluded from the calculation of diluted shares as the impact of their conversion was
anti-dilutive due to the net loss. For the year ended December 28, 2003, approximately 0.3 million incremental
options were excluded from the denominator for diluted income per share as the impact of conversion was anti-
dilutive,

14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company provides staffing services to a healthcare system of which one of the Company’s directors,
Philip A. Incarnati, is the President and Chief Executive Officer. During the years ended December 25, 2003,
December 26, 2004 and December 28, 2003, the Company billed approximately $2.8 million, $3.3 million and $2.2
million, respectively, for its services. The Company had a receivable balance from the healthcare system of
approximately $0.3 million, at both December 25, 2005 and December 26, 2004.

The Company provides staffing services to a healthcare system of which one of the Company’s directors,
David Wester, is the President. During the year ended December 25, 2005, the Company billed approximately $0.4
mitlion for its services and had a receivable balance from the healthcare system of approximately $0.1 million, at
December 25, 2005.

The Company paid approximately $0.1 million, during each of the years ended December 25, 2005,
December 26, 2004 and December 28, 2003, to Florida Atlantic University (FAU) in connection with a continuing
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education program for the Company’s nurses. One of the Company’s directors, Dr. Anne Boykin, is the Dean of the
College of Nursing at FAU, a university located in Boca Raton, Florida.

15. ESTIMATED FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts reported in the consolidated balance sheet for accounts receivable, accounts payable
and accrued expenses approximate fair value because of their short duration of maturity. The carrying amounts of
the revolving credit note and term note approximate fair value because the interest rate is tied to a quoted variable
index.

16. INTEREST RATE SWAP

The Company’s former senior credit facility required that the Company maintain an interest rate protection
agreement to manage the impact of interest rate changes on a portion of the Company’s variable rate obligations.
Effective December 24, 2001, the Company entered into an interest rate swap agreement (the Swap Agreement)
with a financial institution. The Swap Agreement involved the receipt of floating interest rate payments based on the
U.S. Dollar London Interbank Offered Rate, which was reset quarterly and the payment of fixed interest rate
payments of 4.34% over the life of the Swap Agreement without an exchange of the underlying notional amount,
which was set at $50.0 million. The interest rate swap was scheduled to mature on December 24, 2004.

The Company entered into the Swap Agreement to reduce the exposure to adverse fluctuations n floating
interest rates on the underlying debt obligation and not for trading purposes. Any differences paid or received under
the terms of the Swap Agreement were recognized as adjustments to interest expense over the life of the interest rate
swap, thereby adjusting the effective interest rate on the underlying debt obligation.

The Swap Agreement was terminated on May 9, 2002 with the Company incurring a charge of
approximately $0.5 million. The charge was amortized over the remaining life of the underlying debt agreement. As
the underlying debt agreement was repaid in full in December 2003, the Company recorded a charge of
approximately $0.1 million to write off the remaining unamortized balance.

17. UNAUDITED QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table presents a summary of the Company’s unaudited quarterly operating results for each of
the four quarters in 2005 and 2004. This information was derived from unaudited interim financial statements that
have been prepared on a basis consistent with the consolidated financial statements and include all adjustments,
consisting only of normal recurring adjustments, necessary for a fair presentation of such information when read in
conjunction with our audited financial statements and accompanying notes. The operating results for any quarter are
not necessarily indicative of results for any future period.

__Ouarters Ended

(in thousands, except per share Dec. 25, Sept.25, June26, Mar.27, Dec. 26, Sept. 26, June 27, Mar. 28,
amounts) 2005 2005 2005 2005 2004 2004 2004 2004
SErvice TEVEINUES ....vv.vereerecreenrcr e $97,651 $102,408 $101,872  $100,576 $98,459  $106,204  $106,002  $106,393
Gross Profit ..o v 21,426 22,472 22,824 21,444 22,099 23,037 22,678 22,169
Net income (10SS)..veervcemrerrenenseronenane 292) 220 263 (990) (78) 288 (939) (597)
Basic net income (loss) per share ............. (0.01) 0.01 0.01 0.03) 0.00 0.01 (0.03) (0.02)
Diluted net income (loss) per share.......... (0.01) 0.01 0.01 (0.03) 0.00 0.01 (0.03) (0.02)
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MEDICAL STAFFING NETWORK HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

18. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On February 1, 2006, the Company announced a plan to reorganize the infrastructure in its per diem
nursing staffing business. Certain per diem branch locations will be closed as part of the Company’s ongoing efforts
to increase productivity and reduce costs. The branch closures will allow management to focus on those markets in
which there are better near-term opportunities. As a result of these initiatives, the Company expects to incur a
charge of approximately $6.0 million in the first quarter of 2006. The charge will be comprised of approximately
$3.0 million primarily related to severance costs and lease termination fees and approximately $3.0 million in non-
cash goodwill impairment related to the branch closures.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Medical Staffing Network Holdings, Inc.

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Medical Staffing Network Holdings, Inc. as
of December 25, 2005, and December 26, 2004, and for each of the three years in the period ended December
25, 2005, and have issued our report thereon dated February 24, 2006 (included elsewhere in this Form 10-K).
Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in Item 15(a)2 of this Form 10-K. This schedule
is the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion based on our
audits.

In our opinion, the financial statement schedule referred to above, when considered in relation to the
basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth
therein.

/s/ Emst & Young LLP
Certified Public Accountants

Fort Lauderdale, Florida
February 24, 2006
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MEDICAL STAFFING NETWORK HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE 1I - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

(in thousands)

Description

Allowance for doubtful accounts:
Year ended December 28, 2003
Year ended December 26, 2004

Year ended December 25, 2005

Balance at Charged to Writeoffs Balance at
Beginning Costs and And End
of Period Expenses Adjustments of Period

2,75 § 322 $ (4,063) $_ 1920
$ 1920 § 1213 $._(2,069) $§ 1,064

$ 1064  § 48 3§ _(778% 8§ TN
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EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-87358)
pertaining to the Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan of MSN Holdings, Inc. and the MSN Holdings, Inc.
2001 Stock Incentive Plan of Medical Staffing Network Holdings, Inc. of our reports dated February 24, 2006, with
respect to the consolidated financial statements and schedule of Medical Staffing Network Holdings, Inc., Medical
Staffing Network Holdings, Inc. management’s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting, and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting of Medical Staffing Network Holdings,
Inc., included in the Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended December 25, 2005.

/s/ Emst & Young LLP
Certified Public Accountants

Fort Lauderdale, Florida
February 28, 2006




Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

[, Robert J. Adamson, certify that:
I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Medical Staffing Network Holdings, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial
reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this annual report based on such evaluation; and

() Disclosed in this annual report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth
fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financial information; and -

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 3, 2006

/s/ Robert J. Adamson
Robert J. Adamson
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

I, N. Larry McPherson, certify that:

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Medical Staffing Network Holdings, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial
reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared,

b Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this annual report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this annual report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth
fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and [ have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 3, 2006

/s/ N. Larry McPherson
N. Larry McPherson
Chief Financial Officer
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